
Shapoorj Pallonji 

General Manager, 
Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Ltd. 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001 

Dear Sir, 

Security Code : 502865 

Security ID : FORBESCO 

Subject : Outcome of Board Meeting 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

BulH to 1Mt-Sl'l081866 

May 30, 2022 

In compliance with the requirements of Regulation 30 & 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board of 

Directors of the Company at their meeting held on May 30, 2022 has approved the Audited 

Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and financial year ended March 

31, 2022. 

We enclose for your information and record: 

a) the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and financial

year ended March 31, 2022 along with the Auditors' Report dated May 30, 2022 of Price

Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP, statutory auditors of the Company in respect

of the said Financial Results.

b) declaration dated May 30, 2022 with regard to Auditors' Report with unmodified opinion

on Standalone Financial Results (Refer Annexure "A").

c) Statement of Impact of Audit Qualifications dated May 30, 2022 on financial results

(consolidated) of the Company (Refer Annexure 'B").

The Board Meeting commenced at 3.15 p.m. and concluded at 5.30 p.m. The 

Auditors' Report was received from auditors at 7.45 p.m. and the Audited Standalone and 

Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and financial year ended March 31, 2022 

are being filed within 30 minutes from the receipt of the Auditors' Report. 

Kindly take the above information on your reco1·d. 

Yours faithfully 
For Forbes & Company Limited 

\er-\\,� 
Pankaj Khattar 
Head Legal and Company Secretary 

Forbes & Company Limited. Forbes' Building, Charanjit Rai Marg, 
Fort, Mumbai 400 001. Tel.: +912261358900 Fax: +912261358901 
www.forbes.co.in 
CIN No.: L 17110MH1919PLC000628 
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Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Independent Auditor's Report 

To the Memhers of Forhcs & Company Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 

Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying standalone financial s tatements of Forbes & Comp;my Limited ("the 
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at Ma rch 3 1, 2022, and the Stalemcnl of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Com prehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity ancl the Statement of Cas h 
rlows fo r the year then ended, and notes lo the s tandalone financial statements, including a summary of 
s ignificant accounting policies and other explanato1y information . 

2. In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
standalone financial statements give the information required by the Compa nies /\ct, 2013 ("the /\ct") in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformi ty with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in Jndia, of the state of affairs of the Compa ny as at March 31, 2022, and total comprehensive 
income (comprising of profi t and olher comprehens ive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the 
year then ended. 

Basis for Opinion 

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (Si\s) specified under Section 143(10) 
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards arc further described i11 the "Auditor's Respons ibilities 
for the Audit of the Pinancial Statements" section of our report. We arc inclepl'ndcnt nf the Company in 
accordance v-rith the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants or India together with 
the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone financial statements under the 
provisions of the /\ct and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibi lities in 
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. VVe believe lhat the auclil evid ence we have 
obtained is s ufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 01 1r opi nio n. 

Emphasis of Matter 

4. We draw your attent ion to Note 51 to the s tandalone financial statemen ts which describes the management's 
assessment of the impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the husi ness operntions of the 
Company. The Company bel ieves that no additional adjus tments are required in the s tandalone financial 
s tatements, however, in view of various preventive measures taken (such as lock-clowns and travel 
restrictions) a nd highly uncertain economic environment, a defin itive assessment o r lhe impact on the 
subsequent periods is highly dependent upon circums tances as they C'volve. Our opinion is not modified in 
respect of this matter. 

5. We draw allcntion to Note 53 of the standalone financial s tatements in respect of a Composite Scheme of 
Arrangement, which has been approved by the National Company Law Tribunal ("NCLT") vidc its order 
dated January 25, 2022 and a cert ifi ed copy of the order has been filed by the Com pany with the Reg istrar of 
Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra, on February 1, 2022. In respect of lhe aforesaid scheme, merger as per 
the requi rements of Appendix C to Incl AS 103 - Bus iness Combinations, s hould he accounted for as if it had 
occurred from Lhe beginning of the preceding period in the standalone financial sta tements of the Company. 
H owever, in accordance with MC/\ circular elated August 21, 2019, the Company has consiclcrccl the 
appointed date i.e. Pcbruary 1, 2022 as the elate of merger. r urthcr, in res pect or the dcmerger, the 
appointed date of February J, 2022 as approved by the NCI :r has been considNC'd as the d c1_'...,1'..'.:c:!;r~•·=•=·~~:::':S....._ 
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Independent Auditor's Reporl 
To the Memhers of Forbes & Company Limited 
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
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Thr aforesaid Nole also describes in detail the impact of the business com bination on the standalone 
financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this mattn. 

Key audit matters 

6. Key a11clil m11llcrs arc those matters tlrnt, in our professional judgmcnl, wcrr o f most s ignificance in our 
audit of thr standalone financial statements of the current pe riod. Thrsr matters were addressed in the 
context of 0t11· audit of the s tandalone financial statements as a whole and in forming our opinion thereon, 
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these mat ters. 

Key audit matter 

(a) Revenue recognition for Real Estate 
Development Activities (Refer Notes 25 and 
50 lo thr s tandalone financinl statements) 

In res peel of real estate development projects, the 
dclcrminntion of the period over which revenue 
from real estate development activities should he 
recognized, the timing of trans fer of control lo the 
customer; and determination of whet her the 
Company has an enforceable right lo payment as 
per requirements o f Incl-AS u 5 involves 
significant judgement by the Management. 

Revenue recognition for real estate development 
activities is cons iclc rccl as a key audit matter in 
view of the significance of amounts involved along 
with related disclosmes and involvement o f 
management judgement in establis hing the timing 
of transfer of control to the customer a nd 
enforceable right to payment for performance 
completed lo date. 

llow our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Our audit procedures over 1hr recognition o f revenue for 
Real Es tate Devclopmenl acti,·ities included the followi ng: 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Obtaining an 11nclc rslanding and evaluating the design 
and testing of c f'f'ccl ivr ncss of key interna l fina ncial 
controls in respect of reven ue recognition for real 
estate clcvclo pmcnt nl'l ivilics; 

Obtnining an 11nclersln11cling of the Company's 
nccounting policy o n rcvrn11c recognition for real 
estate clcvelopmcnl ,1clivilies and assessing 
compliance of the poliey wi th pr inciples enunciated 
under Ind-AS 11.5; 

Obtaining a listing of ronlracts with custom ers fro m 
the Management; 

Eval11aling com ple te ness and accuracy of the lis t of 
contracts as mrnlionecl above; 

l<,xam ining the mathema tical accuracy in respect of 
amount rccognisrcl as revenue in respect of these 
customer contracts; 

• Exam ining the terms of' sales agreements, agreement 
valur and othe r rclc\'ant clrtnils lo validate revenue 
recognition during lhr yen r; 

• Obtaining evidence rrga rclin)!, the transfer of control 
considering crit e ria ;is per lnd-/\S 115 and evaluating 
enforceability o f paymcnl for work comple ted lo elate 
for va lidating the timing of transfer of control lo the 
customer; and 

• Assessing the accuracy and completeness o f 
disclosures in the standalone financial state ments. 

Based on the abovr audit procedures per fo rmed , we did 
no l come across any significant exceptions with regard lo 
rt'venuc recognition in respect of real estate develo pment 
aetiviti rs. 
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l<cy audit ,nat'tcr 

(h) Asscsstnent of Provisions and Contingent 
Liabilities (Refer Notes 19A and ;-39 to the 
standalone financial sta1Pments) 

As at March ;-31, 2022, in respect of Ct'l'lain dirPc.l and 

indirl'cl I.Ix matters and othC'r litigations, the 

Company has recognised prnvisions aggr<'gating Rs. 
2()5.,so Lakhs and disclos('d contingC'nl liabilities 

aggregating Rs. 14,433.51 Lakhs. 

The Company undergoes assC'ssmenl proceedings and 
l'<'lated litigations \Vith direct and indirect tax 

authorities and \Vith certain other parties. There is a 
high level of JTlanagement judgement rcquin°d in 

estimating the probable outflow of economic 
resources and the level of provisioning and/or the 
disclosures required. The judgement of the 
managenwnl is supported hy advice) from 

independent lax and legal consult,mts, as considered 
necessary by tlw management. Any u1wxpected 
adverse outcomes could significantly impact the 

Company's rc1)orted profit an<l financial J)Osition. 

VVe considered this area as a key audit' matter chw to 
;issociatcd uncertainty of the ultimate outcome and 
significant management judgement involved for the 
assessment. 

How our audit addressed the key audit mat l'er 

Our audit prtH'('ch1n'.s i11clt!eh>d 11w follovving; 

• Und('rst;rnding and c\';dualing lhl' process and 
controls designl'd and impkmentcd b_y thP 
mcurngernl'n 1 including !t•sl i ng I he ope mt i ng 
dfectivcncss or I !w rt'lt·vant controls; 

• Obtaining the dclnils or llw litigalion matters, 
inspcding t!w s11pporling cvidt'nccs and assessing 
management's ev;1]uation through inquiries with 
managenwnt on both the likelihood of nut'conw 
and the n1agnilud(' or poknlial outllovv of 
{'COllOlllH' l'CSO\l!"C'('S; 

• Understanding the ClllTt'llt sU1tus of the direct and 
indirect lax ilSS('.ssnwnts/ litigations; 

• Reading n~ccnt ord<'rs and/ or commtmication 
received from th(' tax <H1lhoritics and with certain 
other parties and 111,rnagcnwnt rcspons('s to such 
cc>mrn 11nicc1 t io11; 

• \i\1hcn~ relevant, r<~ilding the most recent avililablc 
independent tax/ lq!,nl advice obtained hy 
managcnwnt and cv,1lt1ating the grounds 
pn'sl'nll'cl thcn'in; 

• Evaluating independcncl', ohjecth·ity and 
com1wt<~ncc oftlw rn,rnagcrnent's tax/ kgal 
consultants; 

• Obtaining direct wrinen confirmations from the 
Company's l<'g;1]/ tax constiltants (internal/ 
ext crirn l) Io confirm th<' sta I tis oft he asscssrnc11t s 
as ,vcll as had discussion ,vith them as and whC'n 
rcqt1i1-c<l; 

• Togetlwr vvith the nuditor's lax PXJWl'ls, ,1ss<'sscd 
the likelihood oftlw potential financial exposures; 

• Assessing the ;1dcqu,1cy of disclosure in the 
standalone fin;incicil slalcments. 

Based on the ;1hnvl' proc('<"hircs, ,ve did not iclentif\1 
nny nrnteri,1] excl'plions relating lo management's 
assessment of pro\·isions and contingl',nt liabilities. 
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()ther lnforn1ation 

7. Tlw, Company's Board of Directors is rcsponsihlP for the othn information. The ollwr inf"ormation 
comprises the information included in the board report and corporate govcrn;inu· rC'port, hut docs not 
include the slanclalotw financial statements and our n\l{litor's report thereon. 

Our opinion on the s1andalone financial statements doPs not con'l' th<' other inforn1;1! ion and we do not 
express any form of assurance conclusion tlwreon. 

In connection with our audit oftlw standalone financial statements, our responsibility is lo r<'ad the othl'I' 
information and, in doing so, consich•r whether the other information is malPrially inc'.onsistent with tlw 
slancl,1lone financial statements or our knov,1ledgc ohtainc~cl in the audit or ot!wrwise app<'ars to lw 
materially miss\alccl. lf, based on the V1'ork \Ve have pl'rformcd, W(' concl11d<' that there is a material 
misstatement of this other infornrnlion, we arc required to report that foct. 

We lrnvc nothing to re-port in this n~gard. 

Responsibilities ofnrnnagc1nenl and those charged with governance for the standalone 
financial stalc111cnls 

8. The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the mailers stated in Section 1'.M(;:i) of the Act \Vith 
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that giv(' n ! rnc and fair vic,v of the 
financial posit ion, financial performance, changes in equity ,md cash flows oft he Company in accordance' 
\Vil h I he c1cc.01111ting principles generally accc.'p!ed in India, including the Acco11nl ing Standards specified 
unclc~r Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also incl11clcs mainten;rncc nf i1dcqu,1l<' accounting records 
in acconlancc \Vith the provisions of the Act for safcgiiarding of the assets (>f' I he Co111pc111y ancl for 
preventing and detecting fra11cls and other irregularities; sc0 lcction and applic;itinn or apprnpria!C' accounting 
policies; making judgnwnts and est imatcs that arc rcasonahlP ancl prudent; and <ksign, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate' internal financi;il contrnls, that \Vere operai-ing C'llecl ivcl>' for C'nsuring the <HT11racy 

and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the prc.'paration an<l prcsc1 n!;1l ion oft lw standalone 
financial statements that give a lnH:' and fair view and ,ire frt'e from ma!C'rial rniss!;1l<'nwn!, \vlwt her clw' to 
fraud or c.'tTor. 

9. In preparing th(' standalone financial stat.enwnts, m;rnagc'!llc'nt is n'sponsihlc ror ;1ssl'ssing thl' Company's 
ability to continue as a going conccrn1 disclosing, as applicahlC', matters l'C'la!<'d lo going concern and using 
the going concern basis of accounting unless management ('illwr intends to liquiclalc' tlw Compnny or to 
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors an' also l'C'sponsihlc 
for ov(-rsccing the Company's financial reporting proC'ess. 

A1utitor1s responsibilities for the audit of the standalone financial statements 

to. Our ohjcchves <ff() to obtnin reasonable nssurnnce about whC'thcr the stand,llo1w financial statements as ;1 

\•vho]p arc frc(' from rnakrial misstatement, vvlwthcr clue to fraud or error, and lo issu<' ;111 auditor's rC'porl 
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurnnce is a high il'vcl of assur,rnc·c' h11l is not a guc1rantce that ;in 

audit concluctecl in accorclance v11ith SAs will always detect a material misstaternC'nt v11!wn it exists. 
Misstatcnwn\s can ;1rise from fraud or error and are consiclC'recl nrnkrial if, individu,illy or in the aggregate, 
lh<'y c.onld rensonably lw ex1wctcd to influence the economic dc.'c·.isions of users lak('n on I he basis of th('S(' 
standalone financial statements. 
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11. /\s part of a n audit in accorclancc with SAs, we exercise professional j udgment and maintain professional 
scepticis m throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the ris ks of material misstate ment of the standalo ne fina ncial statements, vvhcther 
clue lo fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures res po ns ive to those ris ks, and obta in audit 
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion . The ris k o f not detecting a 
material misstatement res ulting from fraud is higher than for one result ing fro m error, as fraud may 
involve co llusion, forgcty, intentional omissions, mis reµrescntatio ns, o r the override of internal control. 

• Obtain a n unders tanding of internal con trol relevant to the audit in order lo design audi t procedures 
that are apµro priatc in the circums tances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of thC' /\r l, WC' arc also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financia l con trols with rcferenre 
to s tandalone fi nancial statements in p lace and the operating effecti veness of such controls . 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness or accounting es ti mates 
and related disclosures made by management. 

• Conclude o n the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern bas is of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists rC'latcd to events or 
conditions that may cas t s ignificant doubt on the Company's ability lo continue as a going concern. If we 
conclude that a material uncertainly exis ts, we arc requi red to draw atte ntion in our auditor's repo rt to 
the related disclosures in the standalone financial sta tements or, if s uch disclosm es are inadequate, to 
modify our opinion. Our conclus ions are based on the audit evidence obtai ned up to the elate of our 
auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Com pany to cease to continue as a 
going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and co n tent of the standalone fina ncial statements , 
including the disclosures , and whether the s tandalone fina ncial s ta lcmcnts rcprc•senl the unde rlying 
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

12 . We communicate wi th those charged with governance regarding, among o ther mat ters, the planned scope 
and tim ing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any s ignifi r anl dC'fi r iencics in interna l 
control that we identify during our audit. 

13 . We also provide those charged with governance with a s tatement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regardi ng independence, and to communicate with them all relatio ns hips and other mat ters 
that may reaso nably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safegua rds . 

14. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters tha t were 
of most s ignificance in the audit of the s tandalone finan cial s tatements of the ct11Tcnl period and are 
therefore the key audit matters . We describe these ma tters in our auditor's report unless law or regulatio n 
p recludes publi c disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circums tance's, we determ ine that a 
matter s hould not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would 
reasonably be expected to outweig h the public interest benefits of such communication. 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
Independent Auditor's Report 
To the Members of Forbes & Com1>any Limited 
Report on the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements 
Page 6 of7 

Other Matter 

t5. We did not audit the s pecial purpose finan cial information o f 3 subs idiaries incl11cled in the s tandalone 
finnncial statements, whose special purpose condensed s tanda lone financi;d s tatements refl ect tota l assets o f 
Rs . 111,48 0 .78 Lakhs and net assets of Rs . (- )12,805.77 Lakhs as a t Janua ry 3 1, 2022 for arriving at the 
impact of the merger and consequent demerger, as considered in t·hc standal(lnc financial statements ( re fer 
Note 53). These special purpose condrnsed standalone financial sta tements have hcrn audited by 
independent firm of accountants whose reports have been furnis hed to us by the Management. Further, the 
aforementioned 3 subsidiaries s tand demcrged from the dale of merger i.e. w.e.r. the Appointed Date of 
Februa ry 1, 2022. 

Our opinion on the standalone financial s tatements is not modified in res pect of the above matter with 
respect lo our reliance on the work done and the report of the independent firm of accountan ts. 

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements 

L6. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of s ub-section (11) of Scchon 143 of the /\ct, we give in the "Anncxure B" a 
statement o n the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent appl icable. 

L7. As required by Section 143(3) of the /\ct, we report t ha t: 

(a) We have sought and obtained a ll the information and explanations which to l he best of our knowl edge 
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by lhe Company so fa r as it 
appears from our examination of those books. 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other com prc·lwns ivc income), the 
Statement of Changes in Equity and t he Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this Repo1t are in 
agreement with the books of account. 

(cl) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial sta tements comply with the Accounting Standards 
specified under Section 133 of the Act. 

(c) On Hie basis of t he written representations received from the di reel ors as on M,1 rch 3 L, 2022 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 3 1, 2022 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(f) With respect to th e adequacy of the internal fi nancial controls with reference lo standalone financial 
statements of the Company a nd the operating effect iveness o f s uch con trols, refer lo our separate 
Report in "An nexure A". 

(g) With respect to the other matters to be incl uded in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Ruic 11 of 
the Companies (Aud it and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and lo the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given lo us : 

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigatio ns o n ils financial pos ition in its 
standalone finan cial statements - Refer Notes 19/\ and 39 to the standalone financia l s tatements; 

-
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11. The Company has long- term contnicts as al March 31, 2022 for which tlH'rC' were no material 
foreseeable losses and did not have any derivative contracts as at March :-1 1, 2022; 

111. There has been no delay in t ransferring amounts, required lo be trans fe rred, Lo the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the Company du ring the year. 

1v. (a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have 
been advanced or loaned or invested (either frnm borrowed funds or share premium or any 
other sources or kind of funds) by the Company lo or in any other person(s) or entity(ics), 
including foreign entities (" Intermed iaries"), with the understand ing, whether recorded in 
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary s hal l, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or o n behalf of the Company 
("Ul timate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the li ke on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiari es; 

(b)The management has represented that, lo the best of its knowledge and hclicf, no funds have 
been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign entities 
("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, tha t the 
Company shall , whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in o lhcr persons or enlities 
identified in a ny manner whatsoever by or o n behalf o f the Funding P;irty ("Ul timate 
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, securily or the like o n behalf of the Ultimate 
Bcneficinries; and 

(c) Based on s uch audit procedures thn t we cons idered reasonable and approprintc in the 
ci rcumstances, nolhing has come to our notice Lhal has caused us lo lwlicvc Lhat the 
representa tions under s ub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misslatcment. 

v The Company has nol declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

18. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordnnce wilh the requisite approvals 
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the /\ct . 

Place : Mumbai 
Da te: May 30, 2022 

For Price Waterhouse Chai·Lc 1·cd /\ccounlan ts LLP 
Firm Registralion Number: 012754N/N5000 16 
Chartered Accountants 

~ tiry 
Partner 
Members hip Number: 045255 
UDIN: 22045255AJVVZC80 LO 



Statement of Standalone Financial Results for the guarter and year ended 31st March,_lfil,l 

Particulars 

1 Income 

Revenue from operations 

Other income 

Total Income 

2 Expenses 

Real estate development costs 

Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases of stock-in-trade 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 

Employee benefits expense 

Finance costs 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Other expenses 

Total expenses 

3 Profit/ (Loss) before exceptional items and t ax 
4 Exceptional items (Net} (Refer Note 5 below) 

5 Profit before tax 
6 Tax expense 

Current tax 

Deferred tax 

7 Profit/ (Loss) alter tax 

8 Other Comprehensive Income 

(i) Items that will not be reclassified to Statement of Profit or Loss 
Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 

(ii) Income tax re lating to items that will not be reclassified to 
Statement of Profit or Loss 
Deferred tax 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 

9 Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period/ year 

10 Paid-up equity share capital 
(Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 

11 Other equity (excluding Revaluation Reserve) 

12 Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (alter exceptional items) 

13 Basic and diluted earnings per equity share (before exceptional items) 

(Quarter and year to date figures not annualised) 

Forbes & Company Limited. Forbes' Building, Charanjit Rai Marg, 
Fort, Mumbai 400 001. Tel.: +91 22 61358900 Fax: +91 22 61358901 
www.forbes.co.in 
CIN No.: L 17110MH1919PLC000628 

Quarter ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 

(Refer Note 12) (Unaudited) (Refer Note 12/ 

5,271 6,602 44,311 

71 753 175 

5,342 7,355 44,486 

690 760 2,300 

1,952 2,223 2,182 

82 102 (283) 

(827) (381) 24,922 

1,227 1,417 1,440 

304 282 325 

310 356 347 

2,291 1,476 1,462 

6,029 6,235 32,695 

(687) 1,120 11,791 
4,19,246 (6,253) 

4,18,559 1,120 5,538 

(129) (152) -
(1,479) 301 4,013 

,--(1,608) - 149 4,013 

4,20,167 971 1,525 

12 9 25 

11 

12 9 36 

4,20,179 980 1,561 

1,290 1,290 1,290 

Rs. 3,257.11 Rs.7.53 Rs.ll.82 
Rs.7.14 Rs.7.53 Rs.60.29 

~ 
Shapoorj Palonji 

Built to lasLlf'a 1865 

fRs. in Lakhsl 
Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
(Audited) (Audited/ 

23,505 56,236 
1,370 1,337 

-r,j$s 57,573 

2,511 4,602 

8,166 5,879 

273 84 

{2,214) 22,9)6 

4,880 4,238 

1,235 1,376 

1,308 1,429 

6,572 4,690 

22,731 45,224 

2,144 12,349 

~.Q,~ (11,438) 

4,12,235 911 

- -
(1,059) 4,013 

(1,059) 4,013 

~,13,294 /3,l<El. 

22 {45) 

11 

22 /34) 

4,13,316 {3,136) 

1,290 1,290 

2,612 15,739 

Rs. 3,203.83 Rs. (24.05) 
Rs.24.83 /ls.64.62 
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J!!g.Q_~ing of Segment wise Revenue. Results. Assets and Liabilities 

Base d on the evaluation of Ind AS 108 - Operating Segments, the management has identified two operating segments viz., Engineering and Real Estate. 

'Rs. in LokhsJ 

Quarter ended Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
(Refer Note 12) (l,Jnaudlted) (Refer Note 12) (Audited) (Audited) 

1 Segment Revenue 

(a) Engineering 4,959 5,927 5,285 20,632 15,935 
(b) Real Estate 312 676 39,026 2,875 40,303 
Total 5,271 6,603 44,311 23,507 56,238 
Less: Inter Segment Revenue 1 - 2 2 
Total revenue from operations {net) 5,271 6,602 44,311 23,505 56,236 

2 Segment Results [Profit/ {Loss) before Tax and Interest from each 

Segment {Including exceptional items related to segments)) 

(a) Engineering 425 991 1,034 2,975 1,564 
(b) Real Estate (586) 233 11,318 736 12,669 
Total segment results (161) 1,224 12,352 3,711 14,233 

Less: Finance costs (304) (282) /325) {1,235 (1,376) 
Balance (465) 942 12,027 2,476 12,857 

Add: Unallocable income/ (expense) (net) [including exceptional items) 4,19,024 178 (6,489) 4,09 759 (11,946) 
Profit before tax 4,18,559 1,120 5,538 4,12,235 911 

3 Segment Assets 

(a) Engineering 16,582 17,044 15,299 16,582 15,299 
(b) Real Estate 15,775 15,176 14,562 15,775 14,562 
(c) Unallocated 13,388 18,703 22,969 13,388 22,969 
Total Assets 45,745 50,923 52,830 45,745 52,830 

4 Segment liabilities 

(al Engineering 8,316 8,995 9,163 8,316 9,163 
(bl Real Estate 18,737 19,843 17,174 18,737 17,174 
(cl Unallocated 14,790 11,918 9,464 14,790 9,464 
Total Liabilities 41,843 40,756 35,801 41,843 35,80.1 

Notes on Segment Information: 

1. Segment revenue, segment results, segment assets and segment liabilities include the respective amounts identifiable to each of the segments and amounts 
allocated on a reasonable basis. 

2. Details of product categories included in each segment comprises: 

•I Engineering Segment includes manufacture/ trading in Precision Cutting Tools, Spring Lock Washers and Marking Systems. The Company caters to the 
needs of domestic and export markets. 

b) Real Estate includes income from renting out investment properties and revenue from real estate development project. 

c) Unallocable Corporate Assets mainly comprises of investments, tax receivables and other unallocable assets. 

d) Unallocable Liabilities comprise borrowings, provisions and other unallocable liabilities. 

3. Other income allocable to respective segments has been considered as part of Segment Results. 

Conrd ... 



,..,otes to the Statement of Standalone Financial Results for the auarter and vear ended 31st March. 2022. 

j Standalone Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March, 2022 

f"artlculars 

Assets 

t Non-current assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Right-of-use assets 
Capital work-in-progress 

Investment Properties 
Other Intangible assets 

Financial Assets: 
i) Investments 

ii) Other financial assets 

Tax assets 
i) Deferred tax assets (net) 
ii) Income tax assets (net) 

Other non-current assets 
Total Non-current assets 

2 Current assets 
Inventories 
Financial Assets: 
i) Trade receivables 

ii) Cash and cash equivalents 

iii) Bank balances other than (ii) above 
iv) Loans 

v) Other financial assets 

Other current assets 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Total Current assets 

Total Assets 

Equit y and liabilit ies 

~ 
Equity share capital 

Other equity 

Total Equity 

Liabi lities 

1 Non-current liabilities 

Financial liabilities: 
i) Borrowings 

ii) Lease liability 

iii) Other financial liabilities 

Provisions 
Total Non-current liabilities 

2 Current liabilities 

Financial liabilities: 
i) Borrowings 

ii) Lease liability 
iii) Trade payables 

a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises; and 

b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro 
enterprises and small enterprises 

iv) Other f inancial liabilities 

Other current liabilities 
Provisions 
Current tax liabilities (net) 

Total Current liabilities 
Total liabilities 
Total Equity and Liabilities 

3,661 

146 

2,173 

952 

3,144 

611 

288 

1 
98 

1,290 

2,612 

5,548 

19 
140 

5,707 

536 

4,621 

7 

551 

4,180 

4,53D 

13,889 

21,274 
437 

As at 

31.03.2022 
(Audited) 

9,297 

41 
82 

2,256 
149 

3,807 

3,125 

264 

19,021 

16,344 

4,142 

1,066 
5,208 

5,172 

26,724 

45,745 

3,902 

6,243 

35,600 

41,843 

45,745 

(Rs. in Lakhs/ 

As at 

31.03.2021 
(Audited) 

9,094 
213 
198 

2,345 
165 

16,690 
177 

16,867 

1,114 
1,496 
2,610 

346 
31,838 

13,328 

3,452 
2,171 

259 

3 
907 

6, 792 
833 

7,625 

39 
20,992 

52,830 

1,290 
15,739 

17,029 

5,824 
195 
154 

6,173 

628 
6,801 

9,289 
18 

518 

5,408 
1,155 

16,388 
12,084 

452 
76 

29,000 

35,801 

52,830 
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z;. Standalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

caash flows from operating activities 

Pf Oit before tax 

Ad),stments for -

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

tnterest Income earned on financial assets that are not designated as fair value 
through profit or loss : 

(I) Bank deposits 

(ii) Inter corporate deposit 

Interest on Income Tax/ Wealth Tax refund 
Finance costs 

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

(Recoveries)/ Provision for doubtful trade receivables 

Provision for doubtful loans and advances 

Advances written off 

Trade receivables written off 

Gain on fair value of long-term Investments In a subsidiary company 

Credit balances/ excess provision written back 

Net unreallsed exchange loss 

Exceptional items: 

- Provision for disputed matters 

• Impairment of investments, loans (Including interest accrued thereon) and 

other receivables In a subsidiary/ Provision for Guarantees given to a 
subsidiary (Forbes Technosys Limited) 
- Impairment of Investments In a subsidiary (Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes 
Shipping Limited) 

- Notional income on early redemption of debentures 
- Impairment of loans, financial assets and receivables in a subsidiary (Lux 
Group) 

• Notional gain on distribution of demerged undertaking to owners 

Operating profit before working capital changes 
Changes in working capital: 

(Increase)/ decrease In t rade and other receivables 

(Increase)/ decrease In inventories 
(Increase)/ decrease in other assets 

Increase/ (decrease) In trade and other payables 
Increase/ (decrease) in provisions 

Increase/ (decrease) In other llabllities 

Cash Inflow from operations 
Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net; 

(a) Net cash flow Inflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from Investing activities: 

Payments for property, plant and equipment including assets held for sale (net 
of capital creditors and Including capital advances, capital work-in-progress, 

Investment properties and intangible assets) 

Advance received in relation to assets held for sale 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Inter Corporate Deposits given to related parties 
Amount received on capital reduction in a subsidiary 

Amount received on redemption of preference shares 
Loans and advances given to related parties realised 

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents 

Interest received 

(b) Net cash (outflow) from Investing activities 

Year ended 

31st Mar., 2022 

(Audited) 

4,12,235 

1,308 

(S8) 
(19) 

1,235 
(346) 

(79) 

2 
26 

1 

(158) 
(85) 

(14) 

1,813 

230 

7,517 

3,305 
(1,203) 

32,936 

(4,52,876) 
(4,10,091) 

(4,08,278) 
3,957 

999 

(3,016) 
(257) 

(978) 
(85) 

5,161 
1,824 
5,781 

468 

6,249 

(3,197) 

4,000 

477 
(4,733) 

29 

1,728 

(29) 

78 

(1,647) 

/Rs. In Lokhs} 
Yeorended 

31st Mor., 2021 
(Audited) 

1,429 

/20) 

/lll/ 

/93/ 
1,376 

/755) 
12 

lO 
4 

/175) 
/46) 

3 

11,438 

(1,080} 
22,826 

307 

894 

/105/ 
{27,228} 

/777/ 

839 
{3,198} 

125 

/73/ 

28 

911 

1,634 

11,438 

13,072 

13,983 

{4,386} 
9,597 

272 

9,869 

(3,056} 

Contd ... 



c;,s\ flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 

Repayment of long-term borrowings 

Net Increase in cash credit, overdraft balances, credit card facilities and 
commercial papers 
Finance costs paid 
Payment of Lease Liabilities 
Dividend paid on equity shares• 

(c ) Net cash Inflow / (outflow) from financing activities 

(d ) Net increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (a+ b + c) 
(e) Cash and cash equivalents as at the commencement of the year 

(fl Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (d + e) 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash f low statements 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following 

Balances with bank 

- In current accounts 
- In EEFC Accounts 

Cheques, drafts on hand 

Cash on hand • 
Balances as per statement of cash flows 

N otes: 

Year ended 
31st Mar., 2022 

(Audited) 

2,020 

(5,541) 
(1,422) 

(1,191) 

(28) 

(6,162) 

(1,560) 

2,171 
611 

31st Mar., 2022 
' In Lakhs 

549 

62 

0 
611 

(Rs. in Lokhs) 

Year ended 

31st Mor., 2021 
(Audited) 

3,270 

(3,178) 

(3,511) 

(1,346) 

(67) 

/1} 
(4,833) 

1,980 

191 

2,171 

31st Mor., 2021 
(' in Lokhs 

2,018 

142 

11 

0 

2,171 

1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the "indirect Method" setout in Indian Accounting Standard • 7 on Statement of Cash Flows. 

2. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to confirm to current year classification. 

3 . Other bank balances at the end of the year includes: (I) earmarked balances towards unpaid dividends f 24 Lakhs (Previous year !'24 Lakhs I and (ii) margin 
money deposits f 260 Lakhs (Previous year (' 235 Lakhs) includes security against license for import of goods under EPCG Scheme and hence are not available 

for Immediate use by the Company. 

4. The interest paid during the year excludes interest expense on loans for real estate development activi tes amounting tot 53 Lakhs (Previous year 363 Lakhs}. 

• Amount is below rounding off norms of the Company. 
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Notes: 

3. The above results for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 are prepared as per t he requirements of Regulation 33 of the Securit ies 
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, which have been reviewed by the Audit 
Committee and thereafter approved at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on Monday 30th May, 2022. The annual results for the 
year ended 31st March, 2022 have been audited by the statutory auditors of the Company. 

4. The above financial results of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard ("Ind AS") as prescribed 
and Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules issued there under and the other accounting principles generally 
accepted in India. 

5. Exceptional items: 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 
Particulars Quarter ended Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 
{Refer Note (Unaudited) (Refer Note {Audited) (Audited) 

12) 12) 
(i) Provision for disputed matters . . - {230) 
(ii) Impairment of investments, loans 97 - (6,253) {7,517) (11,438) 

(Including interest accrued 
thereon) and other receivables in 
a subsidiary/ Provision for 
Guarantees given to a subsidiary 
{Forbes Technosys Limited) 

(iii) Impai rment of Investments in a (791) - - {3,305) -
subsidiary/ associate (5hapoorji 
Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited) 

(iv) Notional Income on early . . - 1,~03 -
redemption of debentures 
{Forbes Campbell Finance 
Limited) 

(v) Impairment of loans, financial {32,936) . . {32,936) 
assets and receivables in a 
subsidiary {Lux Group) 

(vi) Notional gain on distribution of 4,52,876 4,52,876 
demerged undertaking to owners 
{Refer note 8 below) 
TOTAL 4,19,246 - (6,253) 4,10,091 (11,438) 

(i) The Company had received Rs. 1,017 Lakhs in the year ended 31st March, 2016 from the Hon'ble Debt Recovery Tribunal, Mumbai, 
towards principal and interest for loan given to Coromandel Garments Limited (presently under liquidation). 

The Company had made a provision of Rs. 365 Lakhs in earlier years which was reversed on receipt of Rs. 1,017 Lakhs from Coromandel 
Garments Limited and accounted the balance as interest income during the year ended 31st March, 2016. 

In July 2018, in a separate proceeding the Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai had directed the Company to refund t he aforesaid amount of 
Rs. 1,017 Lakhs with interest. Consequently, the Company refunded Rs. 1,056 Lakhs (including interest calculated from the date of the 
order till the date of payment aggregating Rs. 39 Lakhs) and recorded this as an exceptional expense during the year ended 31st March, 
2019. The Company was subsequently directed by the Hon'ble High Court to pay interest from the date the amount was received by 
the Company amounting to Rs. 276 lakhs (of which the Company had provided for Rs. 46 Lakhs and Rs. 230 Lakhs was disclosed as a 
contingent liability), which was appealed by the Company. 

The Official Liquidator vide order dated 23rd December, 2019 adjudicated and admitted a claim of Rs. 744 Lakhs {comprising Rs. 325 
Lakhs towards loan and Rs. 419 Lakhs as interest). 

The appeal filed by the Company with the High Court with respect to the interest payment of Rs. 276 Lakhs was dismissed on 9th June, · 
2021, Thereafter the Official Liquidator filed a report seeking permission from the Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai for payment of an 
amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs after adjust ing interest amount of Rs. 276 Lakhs from the total adjudicat ed claim of Rs. 744 Lakhs. The Hon'ble 
High Court, vide order dated 4th August 2021, had permitted the Official liquidator to pay an amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs to the Company 
within two weeks from the date of the said Order. Basis the above, the Company has provided for Rs. 230 Lakhs in addition t o Rs. 46 
Lakhs provided earlier and recorded the expense as an exceptional item for year ended 31st March, 2022. The Company has received . 
the aforesaid amount of Rs 468 Lakhs in the quarter ended 30th September, 2021. 

(" 
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(ii) Forbes Technosys Limited (FTL), a subsidiary, has incurred a total comprehensive loss of Rs. 4,218 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 
2022. Its accumulated losses aggregates to Rs. 31,728 Lakhs and its current liabilities exceeded current assets by Rs. 15,064 Lakhs as at 
31st March, 2022. 

FTL has suffered a setback in the last few years due to muted demand and stress in some of the key sectors that FTL has been traditionally 
dependent on, such as banking and telecom. The entry of several local players in the e-payments space and heightened competition 
has put additional pressure on the margins of FTL. 

The Covid-19 pandemic has severely disrupted business operations around the world due to global lockdown and other emergency 
measures imposed by various governments. This has also impacted the operations of FTL as its manufacturing units and offices had to 
be completely shut-down multiple times during 2020 and 2021. Also, supply chain for critical electronic components required for sales 
and services were affected since January 2020, which eventually affected performance during the year ended 31st March, 2021 and 31 st 

March, 2022. The present situation coupled with the impact of Covid -19 had resvlted in a decline in the recoverable value of investment 
/ other assets in FTL, consequent to which an impairment provision/ loss allowance as follows have been created: 

• On Investments of Rs. 2,465 Lakhs and Rs 7,650 Lakhs respectively for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2021. 
• On Financial assets aggregating Rs. 329 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2021 
• On inter-corporate deposits (including interest accrued thereon) of Rs. 1,270 Lakhs and Rs. 4,733 Lakhs respectively for th E> 

quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022, Rs. 3,459 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2021 and Rs. 811 Lakhs 
for the quarter ended 31st December, 2021. 

• On Guarantees given to FTL (against bank loans availed by FTL) provision aggregating Rs. 2,784 Lakhs (net of utilization) for 
the year ended 31st March, 2022, Rs. 1,367 Lakhs and Rs. 811 Lakhs has been utilized towards inter-corporate deposits granted 
du ring the quarter ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st December, 2021 respectively. 

Additionally, inter-corporate deposits given to FTL (including interest accrued thereon) aggregating Rs. 4,800 Lakhs (which 
were fully provided) has been converted into equity investments during the year ended 31st March, 2022. 

(iii) Pursuant to NCLT and Bombay High Court approval vide order dated 21st January, 2022 for capital reduction in Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes 
Shipping Limited ('SPFSL'), 2,01,25,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 87,50,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each were cancelled. 

Further, SPFSL has incurred a loss of Rs. 880 Lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and SPFSL has sold some of its shipping 
vessels on which exceptional loss was incurred in the previous as well as current year. As at the year-end only one sh ip remains (which 
has been sold subsequent t o the year ended 31st March, 2022). Consequently, the recoverable value from use/ sa le of the remaining 
vessels in SPSFL is lower as compared to the carrying value of the investment in SPFSL and an impairment provision of Rs. 791 Lakhs and 
Rs. 3,305 Lakhs respectively for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 has been recorded as an exceptional expense. 

Further, pursuant to the termination of the joint venture agreement between the shareholders of SPFSL during the year, SPFSL ceasei 
to be a subsidiary of the Company effective 1st March, 2022 and now stands as an associate. 

(iv) Forbes Campbell Finance Limited (FCFL), a subsidiary, has early redeemed 0.1% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Debentures at face 
value of Rs. 10 each during the year ended 31st March, 2022. The difference between the carrying amount of the debentures aggregating 
Rs. 525 Lakhs and the amount received from FCFL aggregating Rs. 1,728 Lakhs has been recognized as income received on early 
redemption from FCFL (i.e. Rs 1,203 Lakhs) during the year ended 31st March, 2022 and recorded as an exceptional item. 

(v) Lux group is part of the Health and Hygiene business segment of the Group and was earlier part of the Eureka Forbes group of 
subsidiaries. Pursuant to the demerger of the major Health and Hygiene business in lines with the composite scheme (refer Note & 
below) from the Group, synergies wh ich were expected to bring about business expansion and recovery for Lux Group might not be· 
attainable: Accordingly, based on an assessment of the revised future projections carried out by the Company's management after 
considering current economic conditions and trends and estimated future operating results, an impairment loss of Rs. 32,936 Lakhs foi 
the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 has been recorded as an exceptional item towards: 

• Loans outstanding of Rs. 10,174 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. 
• Financial assets aggregating Rs. 20,033 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 
• Non-current assets Rs. 273 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022, 
• Trade Receivables Rs. 2,456 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. 

6. Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers', a new accounting standard notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) on 
28th March, 2018 was effective from accounting period beginning on or after 1st April, 2018 and replaced the then existing revenue 
recognition standards. The application of Ind AS 115 had significant bearing on the Company's accounting for recognition of revenue from 
real estate development projects. 

The Company had applied the modified retrospective approach as on 1st April, 2018 and recorded a transitional impact in retained earning$ 
towards the reversal of profits aggregating Rs. 5,083 Lakhs (net of tax) on real estate projects under development (i.e. flats under 
construction) for contracts not completed as on 1st April, 2018. 

Considering the terms of the contract, receipt of Occupancy Certificate for Phase I of the real estate development project, issuance of 
possession letters and transfer of control of t he real estate units to the customers, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 1,491 Lakhs 
for the year ended 31st March, 2022, Rs. 408 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st December, 2021 and Rs. 38,653 Lakhs for t he quarter and 
year ended 31st March, 2021. 
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7. The COVID-19 panderr,ic has severely disrupted the world's business operations due to g lobal lockdown and other emergency measures 
imposed by the various governments. The operations of the Company were impacted due to t he shutdown of plants, real estate development 
project and offices following the nationwide lockdown. The Company commenced with its operations in a phased manner in line with the 
directives from the authorities. 

The Company has evaluated the impact of this pandemic (considering the current situation and likely future developments along with the 
expected impact of the new waves and strains of virus in the country) on its business operations, liquidity and recoverability/ carrying valuei 
of its assets including property, plant and equipment, trade receivables, inventory and investments as at the Balance Sheet date. Based on 
the management's review of the current indicators and economic conditions, there are no additional adjustments on the Company's financia, 
results for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The Company has adequate unutil ized fund-based credit facilities available, to take care of any 
urgent requirement of funds. 

The Company throughout the lockdown period and even subsequently has been able to maintain adequate control of its assets and there 
are no significant changes to its control environment during the period. 

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration and 
accordingly, the impact may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company will continue 
to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 

8. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Board Meeting held on 8th September, 2020 had, inter alia, approved the Composite Scheme 
of Arrangement ("Scheme") under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules anc! 
regulations made thereunder. 

I 
The Scheme provides for amalgamation and vesting of Aquaignis Technologies Private Limited ("ATPL") and Euro Forbes Financial Services 
Limited ("EFFSL") [the wholly owned subsidiaries of Eureka Forbes Limited ("EFL")] with and into EFL and amalgamation and vesting of EFL 
with and into the Company. 

Further, upon the above part of the Scheme becoming effective, Demerger and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) 
of the Company into Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited ("FESL"), on a going concern basis would take place. Upon the entire scheme becoming 
effective, the name of FESL shall be changed to Eureka Forbes Limited. 

On 19th September, 2021 a Share Purchase Agreement {SPA) was entered Into between Lunolux Limited (Acquirer), an Advent International 
entity, Shapoorj i Pallonji and Company Private Limited (Seller), the Company, EFL, FESL and Forbes Campbell Finance Limited ("FCFL") for 
sale of shares of FESL, post issuance and listing of the slime pursuant to the Scheme becoming effective. 

Pursuant to the aforesaid SPA, the Board of Directors of the Company vide resolution dated 10th October, 2021, approved the followin 6 
amendments to the Scheme: 
- certain Identified investments of EFL shall not be demerged as part of t he Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) from the 
Company to FESL, 
- "appointed date" as per the Scheme would be effective date or the first day of the calendar month Immediately succeeding the month ir, 
which the effective date occurs, as may be decided by the Board. 

Consequently, notices to equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors had been sent for the aforesaid modifications in 
the Scheme and necessary approvals from the stock exchange, regulators and other stakeholders were sought. On 6th October, 2021, the 
Company has received an order from Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT) for convening meetings of equit~ 
shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors and consequently the meetings were held on 22nd November, 2021, where the 
scheme was approved. EFL has deconsolidated FESL w.e.f. 1,t December, 2021. Further, the Scheme was sanctioned by t he NCLT vide order 
dated 25th January, 2022. Upon receipt of the certified copy of the said order, the Scheme was made effective by filing Form INC 28 with the 
Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra (ROC) on 1st February, 2022. 

The Board of Directors of the respective companies vide resolution dated 31st January, 2022 have approved 1st February, 2022 as the 
Appointed Date, for the purposes of the Scheme. Consequently, with effect from ist February, 2022, ATPL and EFFSL have merged with EFL; 
followed by merger of EFL into the Company and demerger of the Demerged Undertaking on a going concern basis into FESL on the same 
date. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Scheme, each shareholder of the Company as on the Record date i.e. 11th February, 2022 were 
allotted 15 shares each of FESL (Now EFL) which got listed on BSE Limited. The allotment of the aforesaid new shares was completed on 14th 

February, 2022 and each shareholder of Forbes & Company Limited became entitled to 15 shares of FESL (Now EFL) in the ratio to thei, 
original holding as per details specified in the scheme. 

Merger 
Merger as per the requirements of Appendix C to Ind AS 103 - Business Combinations, should be accounted for as if It had occurred from the 
beginning of the preceding period in the standalone financial results of the Company. However, in accordance with MCA circular dated 21st 

August, 2019, the Company has considered the appointed date i.e. l't February, 2022 as the date of merger. 

On account of merger, a net liability of Rs. 13,270 lakhs of merged entities as on 1st February, 2022 (after eliminations of intercompany 
transactions) which includes Lux Group loans, receivables and liabilities Rs 32,906 lakhs, has been taken over and the investment of the 
Company in EFL amounting to Rs. 6,573 lakhs has been eliminated. 
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Demerger 
Post the merger scheme becoming effective, Demerger and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of the Company 
into Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited ("FESL"), on a going concern basis has taken place on the appointed date of 1st February, 2022 as 
approved by the NCLT. 

The demerger has been considered as a distribution of non-cash assets to t
0

he owners of the Company and the difference in the fair value 
and the carrying amount of net assets of the Demerged Undertaking is recognised as Notional gain on demerger in these financial results 
as an exceptional item amounting to Rs. 4,52,876 Lakhs during the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. Neither the Company nor the 
shareholders have received any cash or were they entitled to receive any cash in respect of this Composite Scheme. 

(Rs. in lakhs) 
Distribution of demerged undertaking to Shareholders of the Company 406,600 
Carrying value of net assets/ (liabilities) of demerged entities {46,276) 
Notional gain on distribution of demerged undertaking to owners 452,876 

The aforementioned merger and demerger have a net impact of Rs. 26,433 Lakhs on reserves as at 31st March, 2022. The total assets 
pertaining to the Lux Group retained by the Company in lines with the Composite Scheme are Rs. 32,936 Lakhs (Refer Note 5 (v) above). 

9. The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on 22nd December, 2020, approved entering into a Memorandum o1 
Understanding {"MOU") for sale of approximately 3.804 acres of land at Chandivali with a net carrying value as on 31st March, 2022 
aggregating Rs. 2,316 Lakhs [including Rs. 2,277 Lakhs paid towards seeking permission under the Urban Land (Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 
1976 for the transfer/ sale/ development/ redevelopment of the land during the quarter ended 31st March, 2022], which has been reflected 
as asset held for sale, for a consideration of Rs. 20,000 Lakhs. 

Pursuant to the Board of Directors meeting dated 24th March, 2022, the Company has entered into a new Agreement For Sale (AFS} for the 
aforesaid land, with Equinix India Private Limited (Equinix) for an increased consideration of Rs. 23,500 Lakhs. The new AFS was executed on 
24th March, 2022 and the completion of the said transaction subject to fulfilment of conditions precedent is expected to be completed in Ql 
of FY 2022-2023. Further, the Company has received an advance of Rs. 4,000 Lakhs from Equinix during the year ended 31st March, 2022 
which has been disclosed under Other Liabilities. 

10. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 23rd February, 2022 has approved entering into a binding term sheet for sale 
of its entire shareholding in Forbes Facility Services Private Limited (FFSPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company to SllA Solutions 
Private Limited. The binding term sheet has been executed on 23rd February, 2022 and the agreement for sale has been executed on 20tt 
May, 2022. The transaction is subject to completion of conditions precedent as shall be set out in the definitive documents and is likely to 
be completed by Ql of FY 2022-2023. The proposed sale consideration is Rs 4,200 Lakhs, subject to certain closing adjustments. Accordingly, 
the net carrying value of the investment of Rs. 100 Lakhs has been classified as asset held for sale as at 31st March, 2022. 

11. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30'h May, 2022 has approved the sale of its entire shareholding in SPFSL, an 
associate as at 31st March, 2022 of the Company. Accordingly, the net carrying value of the investment of Rs. 2,756 Lakhs has been classified 
as asset held for sale as at 31st March, 2022. 

12. The figures of the quarter ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 are balancing figures between the audited figures in respect of the 

full financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 as reported in these financial results and the unaudited published year 

to date figures up to third quarter ended on 31st December, 2021 and 31st December, 2020 respectively, which were subjected to Limited 
Review by the Statutory Auditors. 

13. Figures for the previous periods are re-classified/ re-arranged/ regrouped, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current period's 

classification/ disclosure. 

Mumbai, 
301h May, 2022 

For Forbes & Company Limited 

{Mahesh Tahllyani) 
Managing Director 
DIN: 01423084 



~ 
Shapoorji PalJonji 

General Manager, 
Department of Corporate Services, 
BSE Ltd . 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001 

Security Code : 502865 
Security ID : FORBESCO 

Annexure "A" 

May 30, 2022 

Declaration with respect to Audit Report with unmodified opinion to the Audited Standalone 
Financial Results for the quarter and year ended March 31 , 2022 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

We hereby declare that with respect to Audited Standalone Financial Results for the quarter 
and financial year ended March 31 , 2022, approved by the Board of Directors of the Company 
at their meeting held on May 30, 2022, the Statutory Auditors, Price Waterhouse Chartered 
Accountants LLP have not expressed any modified opinion(s) in their Standalone Audit Report. 

The above declaration is made pursuant to the Regulation 33(3) (d) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended. 

Kindly take the above information on your record. 

Yours faithfully 

For Forbes a Company Limited 

~ C'f'"-1\ ~ 
Pankaj Khattar 
Head Legal and Company Secretary 

Bultt to last ... stotl86S 

Forbes & Company Limited. Forbes' Building, Charanjit Rai Marg, 
Fort, Mumbai 400 001. Tel.: +912261358900 Fax: +912261358901 
www.forbes.co.in 

~ L 
CIN No.: L 17110MH1919PLC000628 FORBES 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 

Jndcpcndcnl Auditor's Rcporl 

To the Membe rs of Forbes & Company Limilcd 

R.eporl on Lhe Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statemcnls 

Qualified Opinion 

1. We have audited the accompanying consolidated finan cial s tntc mcnls of 1:orbes & Com pany 
Li m ited (hereinafte r referred to as the "Holding Co111pa ny") a nd its subs idiaries (Holding Compa ny 
a nd its subsid ia ries togeth e r re fe rred tons "the Grou p"), its associa te comp,i nics a nd joint vent m es 
(refer Note 2.2 to the attached con sol idatcd financ ia I s ta te rn e n ts ), which co 111 prise the con sol iclatcd 
Bal,ince Sheet as at March 3 1, 2022, and the consolid,itcd Stateme nt of Profit a ncl Loss (including 
Othe r Comprehensive Income), the consolidated State111cnt of Changes in Fq11ityand the 
consoliclatcd Statemen t of Cash flow for the yea r the n ended, and notes to the consolid ated finan cial 
s tnt e mcnts, including a summary o f s ignificant accou nling pol icies a nd other explanatory 
in formatio n (he re inafter re fe rred to as "the consolidated fi na ncial s tatements"). 

2. In ou r opinion and to the best of our information a ncl according to the explanations given to u s, 
except for the indeterm inate impact o f the matters re fe rred to in Basis lor Qua lified Opin ion sectio n 
of o ur report, the aforesaid consolid ated fi na ncial s tate men ts gi"c the info rma tio n req uired by the 
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Acl") in the ma n ner so req uired and gi\'e a trne and fair view in 
conformity ,vith the accounting principles gene ra lly accepted in l ndia , of t he consolida tcd s tate of 
affa irs of the Group, its associa te companies and jo int ventures as at Ma rch 3 1, 2 0 22 of consolidated 
total comprehensive income (compris ing of profit a nd o ther comprehe ns ive in co me), consolidated 
cha nges in equ ity a nd its consolidated cas h flows for the yea r then ended. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

3. We draw you r attention to the fol lowing q ua li fi ca tion Lo the opinion i11 cl11cled in t he aud it re port 
elated May 17, 2022, issued by an independent firm of accountan ts 0 11 the consolida ted financ ia l 
s tate ments of Lux In ternatio nal AG, a subs idiary o f the Holdi ng Co mpany is re produced as unde r : 

" Lux Inte rnational AG's investment: in Lux dcl Paraguay S.A., a fo re ig n company, is fully 
consoliclatccl. Lux del Pa rag uay S.A.'s net result in t he a mou nt ofTE U R - 296 and total assets of 
EUR 2 .821 millio n are included in the Group's consolidat ed income s ta te me nt and consolidated 
s tate ment of finan cia l pos itio n for the financ ial yea r t hen e nded. We were un able to obta in 
s ufficient approp riate a udit evid e nce on Lux clcl Paraguay S.A.'s s hare of ne t profit as well as tota l 
assets and liabili ties for the year ended December 31, 2 0 2 1, as access to th e finan cial informatio n 
was li mited to the Lux de l Paraguay S.A.'s auditor. Due to this scope lim itatio n, the compo nent 
auditor is unable to issue an op inion on Lhe fi nancia l s ta te men ts o f I .ux clcl Paraguay S .A .. 
Conseque ntly, we were una ble to determ ine whether a ny adjus tme nts a rr req uired with rega rds to 
the ne t assets a nd resul ts of Lux clcl Paraguay S.A. incl uded in the consolidat ed income state m ent 
and consol ida ted s tatement o f fi na ncial positio n." 

Price Waterhouse C/w,-/ered /\ cc:01111/n11ts LL/1, 252, Vee,- Sovorkcn· Ma,-g, Shivqji Pork, l )ac/01· 
M11111 bai - 400 028 
T: +91 (22) 66691500, F: +91 (22) 66547804 I 07 

l(l')\ist<•rl'd offitl' and I lead Offitl': Suchl'la llhawa11, I 1A Vishnu Di)\a111har M;n·)\, New l)<'liii - 11 ot1u~ 

l'rire Walcrhoust• (a l'arl11crship Firm) Co11,·l'rted i11lo Price Walerhouse Clt:1rlcrcd At·t·o1111la11ts I.I.I' (a l.i111ilcd l.iahilit)· l'art lll'rs hip with I.I.I' id,·nlil_,· 110: 

1.1.PINAAC-,c;oot) wilh cffl'(.'l from .July :l;), :.:!nl ~l- Po.sl its <·011vcrsio11 lo Price YVatcrhcn1s(' Clrnrten·d Act·ou11lants 1.1.P, its !CAI n .. 'J.!)slratio11 number is 
,1127,,.JN/ N,,011016 (IC'AI r<')liSlralion 1111111lwr hl'lor<• rn11wrsio11 was o 127;;4N) 



Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP 
I ndcpcndcnt Auditor's Report 
To the Mcmhcrs of Forbes & Company Li1nited 
Hcport on the audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Page 2 of 16 

/J. \t\lc draw your attention to the follmving qualificntion to the opinion included in the audit report 
dated May 1;~, 2022, issll(~d by an independent firm of accountants on the financi,il statements o( 

Forbes Lux International AG, a .subsidiary of the IIoldin~ Company is re,produc{'.d as under: 

''Forbes Lux International AG has ,111 indirect ill\'('.stment in Lux de! Parnguay S.J\., a foreign 
company th,it is a subsidiary of Lux Intenrntional AC. The values altrilrntahlc lo Lux dcl Paraguay 
S.A. arc recognize<! as part of the fair value of the l,11x International;\(~ in\·cst111cnt, amo1111ting t(l 
Cl IF 46.,r:;07 million. Lux de] Paragtwy S.A.'s share in the fair value recognized in lhc balance shc.l:! 
of Forbes Lux Inll:nwtional AG amounts to CHI' 1.,J62 million as a! lkccmhcr Jl, 2.02.1. \f\le \Vere 

unable to obtain .sufficient appropriate audit evidence on Lux de] Pnr,1gu,1y S.A.'s financial results 
,rnd lrnl,rncc!:l for the year ended December :31, ~021> as access to the fin;rncinl information vvas 
limited to Lux dd Paraguay S.A.'s auditors. Dlll' to this scope limitation, the component auditor is 
unable to issu(~ an opinion on the financial statements of Lux dcl Paraguay S.A .. Consequently, \VC: 

were unable lo determine \vhether any adjustments are required ,,vith regards to the investment of 
I,ux dcl Parag11ay S.A. and respective portion of the fair val11c, <llll(>t111!ing to (:I! I' 1.962 millio11 1 

,,vhich is included in the total investment vah1<\ amounting, to Cl IF Cl l F iJh.,707 million." 

5. \i\lc conduc.tcd our audit in ,iccordancc with the Standards on Auditing (SJ\s) specified under 
Section 14:3(10) of the Act. Onr n,sponsibilitics under those Standards arc further described in the 
"Auditor's Responsibilit ics for the Audit of the Consolidatccl Financial St:1tc1rn~nts" section of otir 
report. VVc arc independent of the Group, its associate companies and joint ventures in 
accordance ,,vith the ethical requirements that arc r('.lcvant to our audit oft he consolidated 
financial statements in India in terms of the Code of Et hies issued by tht Jnstitu!c of Charlcrcd 
Accountantt,; of India and the relevant provisions oft\wAct, and we: \rnve fulfille:d our other cthiu1l 
responsibilities in accordance ,vith these requirements. \r\lc believe that the ;111dit evidence \.;,1e 
have obtained and the audit cviclcnec obtained hy the other auditors in terms of their reports 
referred to in sub-paragraph 2,r:; 1 26 and 28 of the Other Matters section below, other tlrnn the 
unaudited finnncial statl~mcnts as certified by the management and referred to in sub-paragraph 
27 of the Other Matters section below, is sufficient and ;1ppropri;1tc to JHm·ick a basis for our 
qualified opinion. 

Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern 

6. The fnllmving paragraph in respect of"mall~rial uncertainty re:Ll!cd \() going c·onccrn" ,vas 
included in the audit report dated May 16, 2022, containing an unmodified audit opinion on the 
financial statements of Forbes Tcc.hnosys Limited, a subsidiary oft IH'. I loldi nµ, Company issul~d by 
;in independent firm of Chartered Accountants is rcproduc.l!d as 11ndnr: 

"\r\le drnw atlention t·o Notr. :3t.J of thr. financial statements ,vhich indicates that thl~ Company has 
incurred a net loss during the cmTcnt year and the Company's c11nTn1 li,1hiliiics exceeded its 
cnrrcnt assets as at March :-P, 2022. The Company has acc11mul;1tcd lossl'.s ,ind its net worth is 
ncg,1tivc as at March :31, 202:2. 
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The aforesaid co nditions a nd finan cial s tress indicate the ex is te nce of a ma terial uncerta inty tha t 
may cast a s ignificc1 11l dou bt about the Company's a bility to continue ;1s a going ('oncern . However, 
th e fi nancial s tate me n ts of the Compa ny have been prepared 011 a going concern basis fo r the 
reasons s ta ted in Note 34. 

Our opinio n is not mod ified in respect of this matte r." 

The Note :Has described above has been rep roduced as Note 68 to the Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the yea r ended March 31, 2022. 

7. The foll owing pa ragraph in respect o f "materia l uncerta inty related to going concern" was included 
in the a ud it report da ted May 13, 2022, conta ining a qualified audit opinion 0 11 s tandalo ne financ ia l 
state me nts of f<orbcs Lux International AG ("FLIAG"), a s ubsidiary of the I lolding Compa ny in th e 
emphasis o f matte r parag raph, issued by an indepcnden t firm o f accou n t;rn ts re produced as 11 nclcr: 

"We draw a tte ntion to note t6 in the finan cial s tateme nts describing the fina nc ia l difficulties the 
compa ny faced during the fina ncial year e nd ed December 3 1, 2021. This fact ind icates the ex is te nce 
ofa mate rial u ncertai nty t hat may cast s ignifican t do ubt abou t f-o rbcs Lux l n tc1w1tional AG's ability 
to cont inue as a going concern. Our o pin io n is no t qualified in respect of this matte r." 

The Note 16 as d escr ibed above has been rcprnduced as Note 70 to th e Consolidated Financ ia l 
S tatements for th e yea r ended March 31, 2 0 22 . 

8. The fo llowing paragraph in respect of "mate ria l uncertai nty related to going co ncern" was incluclccl 
in the consolidated a udit re por t elated May 17, 2022, containing a qualified a udit opin ion o n 
Consolidated fi na ncia l s tate me nts of Lux Inte rna tiona l AG ("LIAG"), a s uhs id ia ry of the Hold ing 
Com pany in the e m phasis of matte r paragraph , issued by an independent firm of accountants 
re prod11ced as unde r: 
"We draw atten tion to note 2 6 in the consoliclatccl fi na ncial s tate ments describing the 
vulnerabi li ties w ith regards to the net sa les and the respective impact 0 11 net profits and futu re cash 
fiows o f Lux I nternationa l AG a nd its di rect a nd indi rect s ubsidia ries ( the Group). Th is fact as 
cl isclosccl in note 26 in the consol idated fina ncial s tat e me nts indicate th e ex is te nce of a materia l 
u ncertainly that may cas t s ign ificant d oubt about the Group's abi lity to continue as a go ing concern. 
Our opin ion is no t quali fied in res pect of th is matte r. " 

The note 2 6 as described above has been rc procl ucccl as Note 71 lo the Consolidated f<i na ncia l 
S tatements for the yea r c nclccl March 3 1, 2022. 

Emphasis of Matter 

9. We draw your at te nt ion to Note 51 to the s tandalo ne fin a nc ia l s ta tc lllcnts whic h d escribes the 
ma nagement's assess ment of the impact of the outbreak of Coro na virus (Covid-19) o n th e bus iness 
o pe ra tions of the Holding Com pa ny. T he Holding Company believes that no additional adj us tments 
arc required in the s tandalone financ ial s tatements, however, in view of va r io us preven tive 
measures taken (such as lock-clowns a nd travel restrictions) and highly uncertai n econom ic 
e nvironment, a d e fi n it ive assess ment o f the impact o n the s ubsequent pe riods is hig hly dependent 
upon circu ms tances as they evolve. Our o pinio n is not modified in respect of this matter. 

nartere 

N/}f'{j 5 
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10. 'v\lc drmv attention to Note 66 oftlw eonsolidated financial statements in respect ofa Composite 
Scheme of Arrangement v11hich has bc(~n approved hy the Nat ion al Com p;rny: l ,il\V Tribunal 
("NCJ,T") vidc its order dated ,January 25, 2022 and a certified ('opy or the order has been filed by 
1hc Company with the Rc~gistrnr of Companks) Mumbai, Maharashtrn, on February 1, 2022. In 
respect of the aforesaid sehcmc, merger as per the requirements of ;\ppl~11<lix Clo Ind AS 10:) -
Business Combinations, should he accounted for as if" it had occu1T<'d from the beginning oft lw 
pn~ccding period in the standalone financial stalcnwnts of the llo!ding Company. However, in 
accordance vvith MCA circular elated August 21, 2019, the l-lolding Co111p,1ny has considered the 
appointed date i.e. February 1, 2022 as the date of merger. Further, in rcspt:cl of the dC',merger, lhc 
appointed date of Fc:hruary 1, 2022 as approved by the NCLT lws been <"onsidcrcd as the dcmcrgt:r 
date for llw purpose of aeeounting. 

The aforesaid Note:) also describes in dc~tail the impact of the business combination on the 
consolidated financial statements. Our opinion is not modified in res peel oft his matter. 

11. The follmving emphasis of matter included in the audit report dated /\pril 18, 20'.!'.-2 containing an 
unmodified audit opinion on the Spcc.ial Purpose Condensed Standalon<' Financial Statements of 
E11n'.k;1 Forb(~s I ,imited 1 crst,vhilc .subsidiary of the I lolding Compan.v is n~producc~cl as under: 

"\Ale dnnv attention to note 29(XII) of the eornknscd standalone Financial statc)ments, which 
dcserihcs tlw Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("the sehemcn) under Scc!ion 2;{0 to 2;-{2 and 
ol'lwr applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 201:i and the ruks ;ind rq!,ulations made 
t.hcn:unckr) which inter alia) provides for amalgamation and vesting of J,:FL with ;111cl into FCI, on a 
going concern basis v.ras approved by NCI :r. The rcqu isitc certified onlcr of National Company I ,;1v,, 
Tribunal (NCJ,'r) has been filed ,,vith Registrar Of Companies on J<'cbru,1 ry 11 :--~02:2. Consequently, 
EFL i.s amalgamatc~d with FCL ,vith effect from the appointed elate of February 1, '.2022. 

Our opinion is not modified in respeet of the a hove matter." 

Note ~9(Xll) as described above is reproduced as Note 56A to tlw Consolidated Financial 
Statements for the y('.<ll' ended Mareh 31, 2022 

12. The following emphasis of matter has been included in the audit report lL1tcd March 15, 2022 

eontaining an unmodified audit opinion on the Special Purpose Condensed J<'inancial St;1tcmcnls of 
J\quaignis Technologies Private. Limited) erstwhile subsidiary of" the Holding Company is 
reproduced as under: 

"\Ve draw attention lo note ;36 which describes that i-lw Hon'hlc Nation,1] Company Lmv Tribunal 
("the NCLT"), Mumbai vicle it.s order elated 2;) ,January,:2022 appro\'cd the Composit(~ Sclwmc of 
Arrangement under section 2:30 to 2:32 and other applicable provisions of" the Companies Act, :c?.01:-~ 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder bctv1'ccn the Company) Euro Forbes Finaneial 
Services Limited (EFFSL), Eun•ka Forbes Limill'.d (EFL), Forbes 01 Cornp,111y Li1nitcd (FCL) and 
Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited (FESL or Resulting Company or tlw Company) and their 
respective shareholders. Consequently vvith effect from 1s1 February, '..~o~!:2 /\TPL and EFFSL hil\'C 

merged with EFL follov11ccl by mcrg(~l' of EFJ, into FCI, and dcmcq1pr of" the De merged Undertaking 
on a going concern ha.sis in to FESL on the same date. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the a hove matter" 
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Note :1h as described above is reproduced as Note ,s6B to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the year ended March :Ji, 2022. 

1:1. The following emphasis of matter has been included in the audit report dated Marc.h l.S) 2022 

containing ;111 unmoclif"iccl audit opinion on the Special Purpose Condensed Financial Stall~nwnts of 
Euro Forbes Financia1 Services Limited, ershvhilc subsidiary of the l lolding Co1np;rny reproduced 
as under: 

"\!Ve drmv attention to note 12 ,vhich describes thnt the 1--lon'ble National Company Law Tribunal 
("the~ NCLT"), Mumbai vide its order dated 25 ,January,2022 approved tlw Composite Scheme of 
Arrangement under section 2:)0 to 232 and other applicable provisions oftlw Companies Act, 201;) 

and the rules and regulations made thereunder lwtwccn the Company, Aquaignis Technologies 
Private Limited (A'l'PL), Eureka Forbes Limited (EFL), Forbes & Company Limited (FCL) ancl 
Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited (FESL or Resulting Company or the Company) and their 
respective shareholders, Consequently ,,vith effect from 1•~1 February, :2.0:,!'.,'. ;\TPL and EFFSL have 
nwrged with EFL followed by merger of EFL into FCL and dcmcrgcr of llw lkmc'.rgccl Undertaking 
on a going eoneern basis in to FE.SL on the same date. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matter." 

Note 12 as described above is rcprocluecd as Note 56C to the Consolidated Financial Statements for 
the ycnr ended March ~11, 2022. 

Key Audit Matters 

14. Key audit matters arc those matters that, in our profr!ssionaljudgmcnt, were of most significance in 
m1r audit of the consoliclatcd financial statements of the current' period. T]H'.SC matters ,vcrc 
acldn~sscd in the context of our audit oft he eonsolidated financial sta!cnicnts <ls n whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and v11e do not pro\'idc a S('.paratc opinion on these matters. 1n 
aclclition to the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion and Material Uncertainty 
Related to Going Concern section, ,vc have determined the matters dcscrilwd bclmv to be tlw lwy 
audit matters to he communicated in our H'.port. 
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Key audit matter 

(a) Revenue recognition for Real Es tate 
Development Activities (Refer Noles 28 a nd 
63 to the consolidated fi nancial s ta teme nts) 

In respect o f real esta te development proj ects, 
the d ete rmina tion o f the period over which 
revenue from real es ta te aevelopment activities 
s hould be recognized , the t iming o f trans fer of 
co ntrol to the cus to mer; and de te rm ination o f 
whether the Holdi ng Company has a n 
e nforceable right to payme nt as per require men ts 
o f Ind-AS 115 involves s ign ificanljudgeme nt by 
Lhe Manageme nt. 

Reven11e recogn itio n for real estate d evelopme nt 

ac tivities is cons id ered as a key a 11dit matter in 
view of the s ignificance of amounts involved 

along with rela ted d isclos 11 res and involve ment 

o f ma nagement judgemen t in esta blis hing the 

t im ing of trans fe r of con trol to the cus to me r and 
e nfo rceable right lo payme nt for pe r formance 
completed to date . 

llow our audit addressed the key audit m atter 

Our a 11d it prnceclures over the recognitio n of re venue 
fo r Rea l Es tat e Develo pme nt activities included Lhe 
follow ing : 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Obtaining an 11ndcrsta nding a nd eva luating the 
design a nd testing of e ffect iveness of key internal 
finan cial controls in respect of revenue 
recognitio n for rea l eslale develo pment activities; 

Obtaining an 11nde rs tand ing of the Holding 
Compa ny's accou nting policy on revenue 
recognitio n for real eslat·e development activities 
and assessing compliance of t he policy with 
p rinciples c n11ncialccl unde r Incl-AS 115; 

Obtaining a listing of contracts with cus to me rs 
fro m the Management; 

Evalua ting co mpl eteness and accuracy o f the lis t 
of contracts as mentio ned above; 

Examining the mathe matical accuracy in respect 
of amount recognised as revenue in respect of 
these cus to mer contracts; 

• Exam ining the Lc n ns of sales agreeme nts, 
agreement va lue and o the r releva nt de tails Lo 
validate revenue recogn it io n d u ring the year; 

• Obtaini ng evide nce regarding the t rans fe r o f 
control cons ide ring criteria as pe r Incl-AS n 5 a nd 
eva lua ting e nforceability of payme nt fo r wor k 
completed to date for va lida ting th e timing o f 
transfer of co ntrol to the cus to mer; and 

• Assessing the i\('CUracy a nd com ple teness of 
d isclosu res in th e consolidated fin a ncial 
s tatc men ls. 

Based o n the above audit proced ures performed, we 

did no t come across any s ig nifica nt exceptio ns with 
regard to revenu e recognitio n in respect of real esta te 
development ,1cl ivilics. 

Charler.-•c 
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Key audit matter 

(b) Assessment of Provisions and 
Contingent Liabilities (Refer lo Notes 19A 
,md 39 to the con solidated financial 
statements) 

As at March 31, 2 0 22, in respec t of certa in d irec t 
and indirect tax matte rs and othe r litigatio ns, the 
Hold ing Company has recognised provis ions 
aggregating Rs . 2 65.5 0 Lakhs a nd disclosed 
co ntingent liabilities aggregating Rs. 14,433.51 
Lakhs . 

T he Holding Compa ny unde rgoes assessm e nt 
proceed ings a nd related litiga tio ns with d irect 
and indirect tax a uthorities and with cer tnin 
o ther parties . There is a high level of 

ma nage mcnljuclgement required in estimating 
the probable outflow of economic resources and 

t he leve l of provis io ning a nd/or the disclos m es 
required. The judgement o f the manage ment is 
s upported by advice fro m independent tax and 
legal consultants, as considered necessary by the 
management. Any unexpected adverse ou tco mes 
cou ld s ig nificnntly impact the Holding 

Compa ny's re ported profi t a nd fin ancia l position. 

We co ns ide red this area as a key nuclit matter due 
to associated uncertainty of the u lt imate outcome 
and s ignificant ma nagement judgement involved 
fo r t·he assessme nt. 

How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Our audit procedures i11cluclecl the fo llowing: 

• Unders tandin g and evalua ti ng the process and 
controls clcsignecl a nd impleme n ted by the 
manageme n t including testing the o pe rating 
effectiveness of the re levant controls; 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

• 

Obtaining the d e tails o ft he li tigation matte rs, 
ins pecting the s uppo rting evide nces and 
assessing manageme nt 's eva luat ion 
through inq uiries wit h ma nagement on both the 
likelihood o r o utcome and the magni tu de of 
potentia l outflow o r econo mic resources; 

Unders tanding the current s tatus of th e direct 
a nd indirect tax ,issessmc n ts / litigatio ns; 

Reading recent orde rs ,i nd/ or co mmunica tion 
received fro m the tax a utho r ities a nd w ith certain 
other parties and nwnage ment responses lo such 
comm 11 11 ic,i lion ; 

vVhere relevant, reading Lhc mos t rece n t 
available ind e pe nde nt tax/ legal advice obta ined 
by management a nd evalua ting th e gro11 nds 
presented there in ; 

Evaluating inde pe ndence, objectivity and 
compete nce o ft he management's lax/ leg,i l 
consultants; 

Obta ining d irect wri tte n confirma tio ns from the 
Company's legal / tax cons ultants (inte rna l/ 
externa l) to eo n firm the status of the assessments 
as well a s had d iscuss io n with th em as and whe n 
required ; 

• Togethe r with the auditor's tax expe r ts, ,issessed 
the likelihood of the po te n tial fin a ncia l 
exposures; 

• Assessing the ad eq uacy o f d isclos ure in the 
consolidaLed finan ci,i l s t,itements . 

Based o n the a bove proced ures, we d id not identi(y 
any material except ions relating to marrngeme nt's 
assessment of provis ions and contingen t liabilities. 
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1.5 . The fo llowing Key Aud it Maile rs were included in the a udi t re port clal cd ]VJ;1y 16, 20 22, conta in ing 
an un m oclificcl a ud it o pinion o n the financia l s ta tc mc n ts of Fo rbes Tech nosys I.i m itecl , a s ubs id in ry 
of the llo lding Company issued by an inde pe nde nt firm o f Charte red Acmu n tan ts re prod uced by us 
ns under: 

a) Inventory valuation 

Des cription of Key Audit Matter: 
As d escribed in No te 2 -4 o f the financial s tate me nts, the invc11torics o r the Company a rc valued a t 
lowe r o f cost and net realisable value. During th e year, the expense o n write-d own o f the invento ries 
to their ne t realisable va lue was s ig nificant and amoun ted to Rs . 1, 157.84 lc1 khs . 

T he Company exercises s ig nifica n t judge me nt and assumptio ns in estimatio n o f the net realisa b le 
value o f the invento ries. The o perations of the Company arc scaled clow n s ig ni fi ca ntly during th e 
yea r as co mpared to prev io us yea rs . As a res ult, the Co m pa ny h;1s acc111mila tecl s lo w and no n­
moving inven tory w hich has increased the write clown expense during the yea r. 

Re fe r No te 7 of the fina ncial s tate men ts for deta ils of invento ry. 

Our response: 
• We obse rved the s tock taking p rocess the year end a nd pe rfo rmed o ur ow n test coun ts and 

obse rved the conditio n of the overall inve n tories . 

• We held discussions w ith the technica l team of the Company to unders tand the im pa ct o f 
technica l o bso lesce nce o n t he net realisable value o f non- moving a nd s low-moving inventories. 

• We held discuss io ns with t he managemen t in respect of the assumptio ns appliecl fo r esti ma tio n 
of ne t realisable value w here direct evide nce of the net realisable value we re not available fo r 
s low and non- moving inve n tories . 

• We lest c hecked the valua tio n o f the inventory he ld at reporting pe riod based o n the ir cos t ;1 nd 
evide nces of ne t realisable value neares t to the reporting elate as a pplicable to co ncl ucle that 
the in ve nto ries arc carried at lo we r of the ir cos t a nd ne t realisab le va lue . 

b) Allowance for expected c redit loss on trade receivables 

Description of Key Audit Matter: 
As o n March 31, 20 22, the carry ing a m ount o f trade receivable was Rs . 1,793.16 lakhs (ne t o f 
provis io n fo r expected cred it loss o f Rs. 2,326.1 1 la khs ) whic h represc n I 44 .68 % o f the to ta I assets 
o f the Com pany. 

The Company exe rcises s ig nifican t judg me nt in calc11lating the expected c redi t losses on trnclc 
receivables . The Company determines the a llowance for credit losses as pe r provis ion matrix based 
0 11 his torica l loss exper ience adjus ted to reflect curre nt and estimated f11turc eco no m ic co nditio ns. 
The Company cons iders cu r ren t a nd a nticipated future eco no mic condi tio ns re la ting to i11 d11s trics 
t he Compa ny deals with. In calculating expected cre d it loss, the Co m pany has a lso cons ide red 
re levant cred it informatio n o f its cus tomers (to the exte nt the Co mpany has access to s 11ch 
in forma tion) to estimate the probability of default in fu ture a nd age-wise analysis of o uts ta nding 
amo unts . 
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In calculating expected cred it loss, the Company has taken into account estimates of possible effect 
from the pandemic rela ting to COVID - 19. 

Refer Note 8 of the financia l statements fo r informatio n on trade receivables and provis ion for 
expected c redit losses. 

Our response: 
• We tes ted t he effectiveness of controls over the development o ft he p rovis io n ma t rix for the 

a llowance for cred it losses, including cons ide ratio n of the curren t <1ncl estima ted future 
econom ic conditions. 

• We verified the completeness a nd accm acy of informatio n used while calcu la ting the provis ion 
for expected credit loss a nd age ing o f the receivables. 

• We analysed the profi le o f the cus to mers and credi t in formatio n, to th e exte nt ava ilabl e in 
respect of certa in cus tomers o n a sample basis. 

• We ana lysed the reasonability o f the provis ion ma trix a nd tested the mathematical accuracy 
and computatio n o f the a llowances by using the sa me input data used by the Company." 

Notes 2,4, 7 and 8 as described above is included in Note 2(xii), 20, 12 a nd 9 to the 
Consolidated Financia l Sta tements for the yea r ended March 31, 2022. 

Other Information 

16. Th e Ho lding Compa ny's Board of Directors is responsible for the othe r information. The oth e r 
information comprises the information included in the boa rd report and corpo rate governa nce 
repo rt but docs not include the consolidated finan cia l s tatements and our a uditor's repo rt 
the reon. 

Our o pinio n on t he consolidated finan cia l statem ents docs not cover the othe r in fo rma tio n and we 
do not express a ny form o f ass urance conclus ion the reon . 

ln connectio n w ith our a udi t o f the consolidated fin a nc ia l s tatemen ts, om respons ibil ity is to read 
the other info rmation a nd, in doing so, conside r whether the o th er in fo rma t io n is ma te rially 
inconsistent with the consolida ted finan cia l s tate ments or om knowlcclgc obtain eel in the aud it o r 
othe rwise appea rs to be mate ria lly misstated. If, based on the work we h;1vc performed and the 
reports of the o the r auditors as fu rnished to us (Refer paragraph 25 and 26 below), we conclud e 
t hat the re is a material misstatement of this other information, we arc req uired Lo report that fact. 
We have noth ing to report in this regard . 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Goverirnnce for the 
Consolidated Financial Statements 

17. The Holding Company's Board of Directo rs is responsible fo r the prepara tio n a nd prese ntation of 
these consolidated fina ncia l s tatements in te rm of the requirements of the Act that give a true a nd 
fair view of the consolidated financial pos itio n, consolida ted fin ancia l pe rformance and 
consolidated cash fl ows, and cha nges in equi ty of the Group includi ng its associate companies a nd 
joint ventu res in accordance with the accounting principles genera lly accepted in India, including 

Charle re 
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the Accounting Standards specified under Sectio n 133 o f the Act. The res pective Boa rd of 
Directors of the com pa nics incl uded in the Group and of its associate co111 pa ni cs a nd jo int 
ventures a rc respons ible fo r mainte nance of adeq ua te accoun ting reco rds in accorda nce with the 
provis io ns of the Act· fo r safeguard ing the assets of the Group a nd for preventing and detecting 
fraud s a nd othe r irregula ri t ies; selectio n a nd applica tio n of appropria te accounting policies; 
111ak i11g juclgmcnts a nd estimates that are reasonable ,rncl prude nt ; and the des ig n, 
i111ple 111e ntc1tion c1ncl ma intenance of adeq uate inte rna l fina nc ial controls, t lrn l were opera ting 
effectively fo r e nsu ring c1ccuracy a nd eo111 ple te ness of the ;iccoun ti ng record s, relevant lo the 
preparation a nd presen tatio n of t he consolidated finan cial s ta te ments lha l give a lrue and fair 
view ;incl arc free from materia l misstate me nt, whe the r due to fra11d or e rror, whic h have been 
used fo r the pmposc of p reparation o f the consoliclatecl financial s la tc111c11ls by th e Directors of 
the 1-Iolcl ing Company, as aforesa id. 

18. In preparing the consolidated firrnncial s tate ments, the respective Boa rd o f Directors of the 
companies included in the Group a nd of its associate companies and jo in I ven tures a rc 
responsible fo r assessing the ability of the Group and o f its associa te companies a nd j o int ventures 
to continue as a going concern, disclos ing, c1s applicable, matte rs rela lccl lo going concern and 
us ing the go ing concern bas is o f accounting unless manageme nt eith e r in le nds lo liquida te th e 
Group or to cease o pe ratio ns, o r has no realis tic a lte rnative b u t lo do so. 

19. The res pective Board of Directo rs of the companies incl uded in the Group a nd o f its associate 
compa nies a nd jo int ventmes a rc responsible for overseeing the finan cial reporting process o f the 
Group and of its associa te companies and j oint ventures. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financia l Statements 

20. Our objectives arc to obtain reasonable ass urance abou t whether the consolidated finan cial 
s tate ments as a who le are free from ma te rial missta te me nt, whe th e r d11c lo fraud or e rror, a nd to 
issue a n a uditor's report that includes o ur opin io n . Reasonable assura nce is a high level o f 
assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit co nducted in accordan ce with SAs will always d etect 
a mate rial misstatement when it exis ts . Misstate me n ts can arise from fra ud or e rror and a re 
cons ide red ma te r ial if, individua lly o r in the aggrega te, they could reaso nably be expected to 
influence the econo mic decis ions of users ta ken on the basis of these con sol idatccl financial 
s ta te ments. 

2 1. As pc1rt of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professiona l _judg ment a nd mainta in 
professio na l sceptic ism thro ughout the a udit. We also: 

• Icle ntif-)1 and assess the ris ks of materia l misstatement of the consoliclatccl financia l 
s tate ments, whe the r d ue to fraud o r error, des ign a nd pe rfor m a udit procedures respo ns ive lo 
I hose ris ks, a nd obtain audit evide nce that is s uffic ient a nd app rop riate to provide a bas is for 
o ur o pinion . The risk o f not d etecting a ma te rial misstatemen t resulting fro m fra ud is hig he r 
than for o ne resulting from e rror, as fraud may involve coll us io n, fo rge ry, in tentio na l 
omissions, mis representatio ns, o r the override of in ternal cont rol. 

• Obtain an unders tanding o f inte rnal con trol releva n t to t he audit in o rde r to design audit 
procedu res thal a re appropriate in the circumstances. Under Seel io n 143(3)(i) of the Act, we 
are also respo nsible for expressing o ur opinio n on whe ther the J lo ld i11g compa ny has 
adequa te interna l financia l controls with re ference to consoliclalecl fin ancia l state ments in 
p lace and the ope rating effectiveness o f s uch controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting polic ies used c1n cl the reasonableness of 
accounting estima tes and rela ted disclosures made by manageme nt. 
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• Conclude on the approprial<'.1wss of management's use of I he going concern basis of accounting 
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, \Vhcl"her a material uncertainty exists related to 
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of !he c;roup and its associate 
companies and joint ventures to continue as a going eotwcrn. lf \VC·concludc that a material 
unc<~rtainty exists, '"-'C arc required to clnnv attention in our <llHiitor\; report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidnkd financial st;1tcnwnts or, if such disclosures ;1re inadcqw1k, lo 
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 011 the audit c,·idencc ohlaincd up to the d,1\c of 
our auditor's report. 1--lmvcvcr, future events or conditions may cause th<'. Gro11p and its 
;issociatc companies and joint ventures to cease to continut: as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, struc:tm'l: and content of the consolilbtcd financial 
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the eonso\idat<'d financial statements 
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner th,1I achieves fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate auclit cvidl:ncc regarding the financial information oft he en lilies 
or business activities within the Group and it:-; associate companies a1Hljoint vcntun~s to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial stalcrncnts. VVc arc responsible for the 
dircet ion) supervision and pc~rformanee of I lw audit of the financial slatcn1cnts of such en! it ics 
included in the consolidated financial statements ohvhieh we <llT the indc:pcndent auditors. 
For the other entities included in the consolidated financial slalcmcn!s, which have been 
audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible f'or the direction, 
su 1wrvision and pcrformmH'.<~ of the audits carried out hy them. \,Ve remain solely r<'sponsihlc 
for our audit opinion. 

22. Vlc l'.Ollllllllllieatc \vith thos(: charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other 
entities induclcd in the consolidated financial state.nwnts ofv11bich we arc the indcpcnclcnt 
auditors regarding, among other matters, the pbnncd sco1w and timing oftlw audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant dcficicneics in internal control that we idcnti(y 
during our audit. 

23. \!Ve also provide those ehargcd vvith governance \Vith a statement that we h,1vc'. complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to com1111111icatc with them all 
relationships and other mattcr.s that may reasonably he thought to hear on our indcpcndcnc(\ and 
wile.re applicable, related safeguards. 

24. From the matters communicated ,,vith those charged with gc)\'crnancc, \VC determine those mailers 
that were nf most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial state:nwn\s of the CUIT('llt 

period and arc therefore the key audit matters. \!Ve describe these matters in our auditor's report 
unless law or regulation prcclucks public disclosure about the 111;11\cr or when, in extremely rare 
circumstances, \VC determine that a ma lier should not he eommunicatccl in 011r report because the 
advc~rsc consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to out\vcigh the public interest 
benefits of such communication. 
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Other Matlcrs 

25. We did not aud it the financia l s tatements o f 7 s ubsidiaries (6 s ubs idiaries as al Ma rch 3 1, 2022) 
whose finan cial s tatements re flect to ta l assets o f Rs . 20,772-47 Lakhs ;rncl net assets of Rs.(-) 
5,944.53 Lakhs as at March 31, 2022, total revenue o f Rs. 23,173.95 I .akhs, total comprehens ive 
income (comprising of loss and other comprehens ive income) of Rs. 2,o:~9.86 Lakhs and net cash 
flows amoun ting to Rs(-) 2,010.56 Lakhs for the yea r ended on tha t d;i tc, as cons idered in the 
consolida ted financial s tate ments. The consolidated fin ancial statements also include the Group's 
share o f total comprehensive income (compris ing of profit and o the r comprehens ive inco me) of Rs . 
262.72 Lakhs and Rs. 0-43 Lakhs for the year ended March 3 1, 2022 as cons id e red in the 
consolidated financial s tatements, in respect of3 associate compa nies and 1 joint venture 
respectively, whose financial s tatements have not been audited by us. These financia l s la lcme nls 
have been aud ited by other a uditors whose reports have been furnis hed to us by the Management, 
and our opinion on the consolida ted fin a ncial s tatements insofar as it relates lo the amounts and 
d isclosm es included in respect of these subs idiaries, j o int ven tures and associate companies and 
our report in te rms of s ub-sectio n (3) of Sectio n 143 of the Act including repo rt 0 11 Other 
Information insofa r as it relates to the aforesaid subs idia ries, joint vcnlmes a nd associate 
compa nies, is based solely on the reports of the othe r auditors . 

26. We clicl not aud it th e special purpose financial informatio n of 3 s ubsidiaries included in the 
consolidated finan cia l sta tements, whose s pecia l purpose financia l info rmation re fl ect total assets o f 
Rs. 111,480.78 Lakhs and ne t assets o f Rs.(-) 12,805.77 Lakhs as at January 31, 2022, tota l revenues 
of Rs. 166,758.61 Lakhs, total comprehensive income (comprising of pro fit and other 
com prehens ive incom e) of Rs. 1,097-41 Lakhs a nd ne t cash (lows amo unting to Rs. (-) 727.15 Lakhs 
for the pe riod from April J , 2021 to J a nuary 31, 2022, as cons ide red in the consolidated finan c ial 
s tatements. These specia l purpose financial in formation have been a udited by othe r 
audi tors/independent firm of accountants whose repo r ts have been furnis hed to us by the 
Manage ment. Further, the aforementioned 3 s ubsidiaries, s tand dcme rgecl fro m the elate of merger 
i.e. w.c.f. Appo inted Date Febrnary 1, 2022. 

27. We d id not audit the financia l s tatements/ finan cial informa tion of 6 s ubsid iaries (1 as a t March 
3 1, 2022) whose finan cial s tateme nts/ financial info rmation re fl ect total asse ts of Rs . 5,788.53 
Lakhs and net assets of Rs 3,309-49 Lakhs as at J a nuary 3 1, 2022/ March 3 1, 2022, total revenue 
of Rs. 6,284.35 Lakhs, to tal comprehens ive income (comprising of loss a nd o th er comprehens ive 
income) of Rs . (-) 2,571.45 Lakhs and net cash fl ows amoun ti ng lo Rs.(-) 126.90 Lakhs for the 
period from April 1, 2021 to J a nuary 31, 2022/ Ma rch 31, 2022, as cons idered in the consoliclatccl 
finan cial sta te ments . The consolidated fin a ncial s tate men ts also include the Group's sha re of total 
comprehens ive incom e (compris ing of profit and o th e r com prehens ive iucome) of Rs . Nil as 
cons ide red in the consolidated finan cial s tatements, in res pect of I associa te company (no 
associates as at March 31, 2022) whose finan cial s tatemen ts have not been audited by us. These 
finan cia l stateme nts/ finan cial information are unaudited and have been furnis hed to us by the 
Management, a nd o ur opinio n on the consolidated financial s tatements insofar as it relates to the 
a mo unts and disclosures incluclecl in respect of these subsidia ries a nd associa te company a nd our 
report in te rms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 o f t he Act including report o n Other In formal ion 
insofar as it relates to the aforesa id s ubsidiaries a nd associa te companies, is based solely o n such 
unaudited fina ncia l s ta tements . In ou r opinion and according to the in formatio n and explanations 
g iven to us by the Management, these financia l s tatements are not materia l lo the Group. 
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28. The fin anc ia l s tatements of I subsicl ia ry and consolidated fin ancia l s ta te men ts of one su bs idiary 
located o uts ide India (Refe r Note 3 and 4 above), incl uded in t he consol ida ted fin anc ia l 
statemen ts, which cons titute to ta l assets of Rs . 52,091.32 La khs a nd net assets of Rs .(-) 5,447.9 1 
Lakhs as at December 31, 20 2 1, to tal revenue of Rs. 2,1258.99 La khs, tot,tl comprehensive income 
(compris ing of loss and other comprehens ive income) o f Rs . (-) 3,686.54 La khs and net cash flows 
a 11101111ting to Rs. 352.33 Lakhs for the yea r then ended ; have been p re pared in accorda nce with 
accoun ting p rinciples gene rally accepted in their respective countries and have been a udited by 
othe r audi to rs u nder gene rally accepted audi ting s ta nda rds appl icable in their respective 
countries. The Company's ma nagement has converted the finan t.:ial s ta tements of s uch 
s ubsid ia ries located outs ide India fro m the accoun ting principles genera lly accepted in the ir 
respective coun tries to the accoun ting p rinciples generally accepted in Ind ia . We have audited 
these co nvers io n adjustments mad e by the Com pany's managcmcnl . O ur opinio n in so fa r as it 
rela tes to the bala nces and a ffa irs o f such subsidiar ies located o uts ide Ind ia , inclu d ing ot her 
info rmatio n, is based o n the repo rt o f o ther audito rs and the co nversio n ,1d_jusl rnc nls prepa red by 
the management o f the Compa ny and a udi ted by us. 

Our opin io n o n t he consolidated fi nancia l s ta tem ents, a nd ou r repo r t o n Other Legal and 
Regula tory Req uirements below, is no t modified in res pect o f the above ma tt e rs with respect to 
0 111· re lia nce o n the wo rk do ne a nd the repo rts o f the o the r audito rs a nd the fin ancial s tatements/ 
fin a ncia l in formation certified by the management. 

Report on Other Legal a nd Regulatory Requirem e n ts 

29. As men tio ned in paragrap h 26 above, in respect o f Eureka Forbes Limited , Aqua ign is 
Tech nologies Pr ivate Lim ited and Euro rorbes Fi nancia l Se rvices Limit ed, subsid ia ries of t he 
Holding Co mpa ny only a ud ited specia l pu rpose fi nanc ia l in formal ion has been made available to 
us wh ich docs no t include Repo rt o n Other Lega l a nd Regula to ry Req ui rements. Accord ingly, no 
commen ts for the sa id s ubs id ia ries have been incl uded for the purpose o f repo rting u nde r Report 
on Othe r Legal and Regula to ry Req uiremen ts. 

30. As requi red by the Companies (Aud itor's Repo rt) Orde r, 20 20 ("CA RO 2020"), issued by the 
Centra l Government of Indi a in terms o f sub-section (1 1) o f Section 143 o f the Act, we g ive in the 
Anncxm e 13, a s ta tement on the ma tte r s pecified in pa ragra ph 3(xx i) o f CA RO 2020. 

3 1. As req u ired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we repo rt, to t he extent a pplicable, that: 

(a) We have sough t and obta ined a ll the in formation a nd explana tio ns which Lo the best of o ur 
knowledge a nd belie f were necessa ry for the purposes of our audit o f the a foresaid 
consolidated financia l s tatements. 

(b) ln 011 r o pinio n, proper books o f account as req uired by law relating to prepa ra tio n o f the 
aforesaid consolida ted fin ancial s ta tements have been kept so fa r as it appears fro m our 
exilmina tio n of those books and the re po rts of the othe r auditors . 

(c) The Consolida ted Ba lance S heet, t he Consolida ted Sta tement o f Profit an d Loss (i ncl11d ing 
o ther com prehens ive inco me), the Consolida ted Statemen t o f Cha nges in Equity and the 
Co nsolida ted S ta tement of Cas h flow dealt with by this Repor t a rc in ag reement with the 
relevant books of account and records main tained fo r the purpose o f prepa ra tio n of the 
consolida ted fin a ncia l state ments . 

(cl) I n o ur opi n ion , t he aforesaid consolid a ted fin a ncia l s tatements com ply w ith the Accou nting 
S tanda rds specified u nde r Sectio n 133 of the Act. 
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(e) The following matte r was included in the audit report dated May 16, 2 0 22 issued o n the 
financial s ta tements of Forbes Technosys Limited, a subs idiary o f the Hold ing Company 
issued by an independent fi rm of Charte red Accountants reproduced as under: 

"The matter described in th e 'Material Uncertainty Related lo Going Concern ' section above, in 
ou r opinion, may have an adverse effect o n the function ing of the Company." 

(t) On the basis of the writte n re presentations received fro m the cl ircctors of the Holding 
Compa ny as on March 3 1, 2022 taken o n record by the Ron rel of Dircc:tors or the Holding 
Compa ny and the re ports of the s tatutory audil o rs of its s ubsidia ry co mpa nies, associate 
compa nies and joint ventures incorporated in India , none of the clireclors of the Group 
com pa nies, its associate companies and joint ventures in corporated in 1ndia is d isqualified as 
on March 3 1, 2022 from being appoin ted as a director in terms o f Section 164(2) of the Act. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal finan cia l controls with ref'crencc lo consolidated 
fi nancial s tatements of the Group a nd the o perating effectiveness of s uch conlrols, refe r to our 
separate report in Ann exm c A. 

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Aud itor's l{eport in acco rda nce with 
Ru ic 11 of the Companies (Audit and Audito rs') Rules, 2014, in our o pinion and to the best of 
om information and accord ing to the explana tions given to us: 

1. The consolidated finan cial s tatements disclose the impact, if any, of pending li t igatio ns on 
the consolidated finan cial position of the Group, its associate companies and j o in t ventures 
- Refer Note 22 a nd 41 to the consolidated financial s tatements . 

ii. Provis ion has been made in the consolidated financia l s tatement s, as rcqt1ired under th e 
a pplicable law or accounting s tandards, fo r materia l foreseeable losses, if any, o n long­
term contracts including de rivative contracts as at March 3 1, 2022 - Refer (a) Note 2 113 lo 
the consolidated fin a ncial s tatements in respect of s uch ite ms as it rc lat.cs to the Group, its 
associate companies and joint ventures and (b) the Group's share o f ne t profit/loss in 
respect of its associa tes. 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amot1nts required to be trnnsl'crrccl to th e Jnvcsto r 
Edt1ca tion and Protection Fund by the Ho lding Company and its s ubs idiary compa nies, 
associa te compa nies a nd j oint ventures incorpora ted in India during the yea r. 

IV. 

a) The respective Managements of the Holding Company and its subs idia ries, jo int 
ventures a nd associates which arc companies incorporated in India whose fin ancia l 
sta tements have been aud ited under the Act have represented lo llS and the other 
audito rs of s uch subs idiarics, j o int ventures a nd associa tes respectively that, to the 
best o f the ir knowledge a nd belief, as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no fund s 
(which are material either individually o r in the aggrega te) have been advanced or 
loaned o r invested (either fro m borrovved funds or share premium or any o the r 
sources or kind offunds) by the Company o r any o f s uch s ubs idia ries, joint venture 
and associa tes to or in any other pe rson(s) or cn tity(ies), including fore ig n entities 
("Intermediaries"), with the unders tanding, whether rccorclcd in wri ting o r othe rwise, 

Chartered 

\'IN '21'U SJ 
kriy111-E}/ n111t 

012754N't~lj 

Mumbai 
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that the Intermediary shall, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in othe.r persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on h!.:h;ilf of the IIolcling Com pan\ 
or any of such suhsidiarics,joint venture and associates ("Ul!imatc Beneficiaries") nr 
provide any guaranlC(\ security or the like on lwhalfof the lJltirnalc Beneficiaries. 

h) The respective Managements of the l-lnlding Company and its s11hsidi,irics, joint 
venture and associates vvhich arc companies incorpora!C'.d in lndi,i whose financial 
statements have been audited undc;r !he-: Ac1 hnvc) rcpn:sentc~d to us :ind t·he oth(~r 
auditors of sueh .suh.sidiaries, joint vent un: and associa !es rcspcc1 i\'c.ly that, to the 
best oftlwir knmvleclgc and belief, as disclosed in the notes lo the account·s, no funds 
(which arc material either individually or in the aggregate) have been rcecivccl by the 
Holding Company or any of .such subsidiarics,joint venture and ;is,-;ociates from any 
pcrson(s) or entit:y(ics), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties''), with the-~ 
under.standing, whethl'.I' recorded in vvrit ing or otherwise, tli,11 I he l lolding Company 
or any of such suh.sidiaric.s, joint vent 11n: and associates shall, di reel l_v or indirectlJ\ 
lend or invest in other per.sons or entities identified in any maniH:r whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or J)!'m·icle any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ult imatc Beneficiaries. 

c.) Based on the audit procedures, that has been considcn_'.d rcason,1hle and appropriate 
in the cireum.stanccs, performed by us and those performed by I he auditors of' the 
.subsidiaries,joint venture and associates whic.h arc companies incorporated in lndia 
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our 
or other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other a11ditors to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) contain any material 
misstatement. 

v. The Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, associate companies and joint \'Cnturcs, 
have not declared or paid any dividend during the year. 

:3:2. The (;roup, its associate companies and joint ventures have paid/ provided for managerial 
remuneration in aecnnlnnce with the requisite approvals 111<.rnd,1tcd hy the provisions of Section 197 
read \vit h Sehcdule V to the Ac1 to the extent those \Ven: applicable lo I hl' rcspcc1 ivc cnt itics. 

The f"ollmving matter ,vas included in t·hc audit report elated May ~8, '.,!0'.2'.2 iss1H'.d on the financinl 
.statemcnls of Forbes Facility Services Private Limited, a suhsidiar): of I he I lolding Company i,-;s11cd 
hy ,rn independent firm of Chartered Accountants reproduced as 1md<:r: 
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"ln our opinion ,rncl to the best of our information and according In the cxpldn:itions given to us, the 
remuneration paid/provided hy the Company to its directors during the yc;ir is in excess oft he 
limits laid down under section 197 of the Act. Details of remuneration p,1lcl in excess of the limit laid 
down under this section arc given hclmv. 

Remarks 
_YQiLI_' 
March 31, 

Amount of (~XCCSS 

remuneration 
-·········----<----········ --······· 

1.6:i !nld1s Rcnrnncration paid/ payable to IVlr. Vi1w_v lkshmukh (Executive 
Director and CEO) which ,vas ;ipprnvcd in !he Board meeting 
held on .July 1:~, '.20:~1 cxccl:ds the limit prescribed under section 
197 by Rs. 1.6:, lakhs and is subjcl'.I lo slwrelwlders approval. 
The Company has charged the excess rcmuncrntion paid/ 
payable in tlw st;itcnwnt of Profit ,rnd Loss for the year ended 
March :-31, 202.2. Pending such approYal, the rcmunen1tion 
already paid in excess of the limit .imo,m!ing to Rs 1.6:-3 la1<hs is 
held in trust hy Mr\linay J)cshmukh. 

F«>r Price \Natcrhousc Chartered Accountants 1.,1.,P 
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016 
Chartered Accountants 

Sarah George 
Part ncr 
Membership Number: 04.525,s 

UDIN: 2204s255A,JVSOH279;3 
Place: Mumbai 
Date: May :-30, 2022 



~\!!s.!!!S!!!_Qf Cons~anclal Results for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 

Particulars 

Continuing Operations 

I Income 

Revenue from operations (Refer Note 11 below) 

Other Income 

Total Income 

2 Expenses 

Real estate development costs 
Cost of materials consumed 

Purchases of stock-In-trade 

Changes In inventories of finished goods. work-In-progress and stock-in-trade 

Employee benefits ewpense 

Finance costs 

Depreciat ion and amortisation e1<pensc 

Ot her c,cpenses 

Total e,cpcnses 

3 Profit/ (loss) before exceptlonal Items, Share of net profits of Investments accounted 
for using equity m ethod and tax 

4 Share of Profit of Associates / Joint ventures (net) 

5 Profit before exceptional Items and tax 

6 E,cceptlonal items (Net) (Refer Note 5 below) 

7 Profit/ (loss) before tax from continuing operations 

8 Tax expense 
Current tax 

Deferred tax 

9 Profit/ {loss) after t;;1x from continuing operat ions 

10 Discontinued operations 

Profit/ (loss) before tax from discontinued operat ions (Refer Note 14 below) 

Tax Expense/ (Benefit) of Discontinued Operations 

Profit/ {loss) from discontinued operations 

Profit/ (Lou) for the period/ year 

11 Other Comprehensive Income 

A (I) Items that wlll not be reclassified to statement of profit or loss 

(a) Remeasurement of the defined benefit plans 

(b) Equity instruments t hrough other comprehensive income 

{c) Income Tax relating to the above Items 

8 (I) Items that may be reclassified to statement of profit or loss 

(a) Exchange diffe rences In translating the financial statements of forelgn operat ions 

Other Comprehensive Income (net of tax) 

12 Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the period/ year 

13 Profit/ (Loss) for the period/ year attributable to:-

(I) Owners of the Company 
(ii) Non controlling Interests 

14 Other comprehensive Income for the period/ year attributable to:-

(1) Owners of the Company 
(II) Non controlling Interests 

IS Total comprehensive Income/ (loss) for the period/ year attributable to:-

(I) Owners of the Company 

Ill) Non controlling Interests 

16 Paid-up equity share capital 

{Face Value of Rs. 10 each) 

17 Other equity (excluding Revaluation Reserve) 

18 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share attributable to owners of the 

Company (after exceptlonal Items) - continuing operations 

19 Basic and diluted earnings/ (loss) per equity share attributable to owners of the 

Company (after exceptlonal items) • discontinued operations 

20 Basic and dlluted earnings/ {loss) per equity share attrlbutable to owners of the 
Company (after exceptlonal Items) • continuing and discontinued operations 

(Quarter and year to date figures not annuahsed) 

See acco o the consolldated financial results. 

' ct 
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Quarter ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 

(Refer Note 19) (Unaudited) (Refer Note 19/ 

11,652 13,673 52,135 

1,210 2,161 3,581 

12,862 15,834 55,716 

691 760 2,300 

2,106 2,179 2,566 

1,628 1,547 2,619 

{761) (77) 24,135 

4,547 4,253 5,704 

1,091 898 707 

808 1,141 J, 412 

3,104 3,643 5,095 

13,214 14,344 44,538 

(352) 1,490 11,178 

616 238 263 

264 1,728 Jl,441 

(26,601) (161) /8, l 75) 

(26,337) 1,567 3,266 

4 (71) 215 

(1,492) 309 5,457 

(1,488) 238 5,672 

(24,849) 1,329 (2,406) 

4,54,600 (2,492) /503) 

(371) 54 /4 79/ 
4,54,229 (2,438) /982/ 

4,29,380 (1,109) (3,388 

(219) 11 40 

9,767 

59 12 

(1,865) (694) 2,174 

7,742 (683) 2,226 

4,37,122 (1,792) (1,162) 

4,29,092 (1, 104) (1,461) 

288 (S) (1,927) 

4,29,380 (1,109) (3,388) 

7,742 (683) 2,231 

/5) 

7,742 (683) 2,226 

4,36,834 (1,787) 770 

288 (S) (1,932) 

4,37,122 (1,792) (1,162) 

1,290 1,290 1,290 

Rs. (197.43) Rs. 10.48 Rs. /3. 77/ 

Rs. 3,567.56 Rs. (19.15) Rs /7. /JJ 

Rs. 3,370.13 Rs. (8.67) Rs. (11 .48) 

~ 
Shapoorji Palonjl 

Bufft to lasL1r10t W,6 

(Rs. in Lokhs/ 

Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.03 202J 

(Audited) (Audited/ 

51,473 93,242 

3,444 ~~ 
54,917 1,00,572 

2,512 4,602 

8,384 6,732 

7,299 5,806 

(1,866) 23,626 

17,290 21,393 

4,203 5,159 

4,144 6,8J3 

12,910 J7,320 

54,876 91,451 

41 9,121 

1,204 483 

1,245 9,604 

(35,021) (12,597) 

(33,776) (2,993) 

391 436 

(1,421) 5,588 

(1,030) 6,024 

(32,746) /9,017/ 

4,57,306 (654) 

(2,080) /J,989/ 

4,SS,226 (2,643) 

4,22,480 (11,660) 

(207) /69/ 

9,767 
S9 12 

(3,120) 2,305 

6,499 2,248 

4,28,979 (9,412) 

4,22,585 (7,767) 

(105) (3,893) 

4,22,480 (11,660) 

6,499 2,249 

/JI 
6,499 2,248 

4,29,084 (5,518) 

(105) (3,894) 

4,28,979 (9,412) 

1,290 1,290 

6,969 (15,392) 

Rs. (256.37) Rs. /40 24/ 

Rs. 3,575.39 Rs /20 16/ 

Rs. 3,319.02 Rs. /61.00/ 

Contd .. 
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Reoortinc of Secment wise Revenue Ruuhs Asnu and Liabilities 

Based on the evalua tion of Ind AS 108 . Opera1in1 Segments, the management hH Identified the following operating segments vi,., Healt h, Hygiene, Safety Produm. 
and tts se ,vices, Engineering, Rea l Estate, IT Enabled Servkes and Products and Shlppln& and Logistics Servku. 

(Rs. ,n lolchs) 

Quarter e nded Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 11.01.1011 31.03.2022 11.03.1011 

(Refe r Note 19) · fUnaudlted) (Rt/tr Nore J!J) I Audited) {Audited} 

1 Se1ment Revenue 

(a) Hea lth, Hvsiene, Sa fety Products and Its services S,366 5,368 5,711 22,404 12,641 

(b) En1ineerin1 4,958 5,927 5,185 20,631 15,915 

(cl Real Es1a1e )40 703 19,034 2,972 40,385 

(d) IT Enabled Se,vices and P,oducts 320 195 464 1,066 2,829 

(el Shipping and logistics Services 679 1,489 1,634 4,443 JJ,541 
(I) Others 8 7 6 29 28 

Total 11,671 13,689 51,145 51,545 93,360 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue 1191 1161 1101 1721 1118 

Tota l Income from operations (net) 11,652 13,673 51 135 51,473 93,i41 

2 Se1ment Resulh Proflt/(loss) before Tu and Interest from each 

Secme nt (lnclud!ng exceptional Items related to secments) 

la) Heahh, Hygiene, Safety Products and Its servkes (24,583) 1,115 1,100 • (31,941) (28) 

lb) Engineering 405 995 1,043 2,969 1,574 

le) Real Cuate (600) 244 11,351 75) 12,688 

Id) IT Ena bled Services and Products & (l ,lll) ' (498) . (7,120) • & 12,559) • & (10,265} 

le) Shlppin1 and lo1istiu .Services + S A 654 241 s (2,098) +SA 926 s (J,129) 

If) Others 6 161 /7J 1151 126 

Total se1menl results (25,449) 2,091 4,369 (29,867) 1,814 

Add: Share of profit o f Joint ventures and associates accounted for using equity 616 2)8 263 1,204 483 

method 

Add: Exceptional Items (230) 

Less: Finance cous 11 0911 18981 17071 14 2031 15,159 

Balance (25,924) 1,431 3,925 ()l,096j ( J,862) 

Add: Unallocable income / (expense) (net) 1413 ll6 16591 16801 IJ,JJJ 

Profit/ (loss) from continuing activities before tax 126,337 1,567 3,266 lll,7761 12,993 

Profit/ (Lou) from discontinued operat ions 4,54 600 f2 492 1503 4,57 306 1 654 

Profit/ (Loss) before tax from continuing and discontinued operations 4,28,263 f92S 1,763 4,23,530 1 3,647 

3 Segment Assets 

fa) Heal1h, Hygiene, Safely P,oducts and its services 14,045 41,0S7 46,911 14,04S 46,911 

(bl Engineering 16,582 17,044 15,199 16,582 15,199 

(c) Real Estate 16,331 15,760 JS,083 16,331 JS.OBJ 

Id) IT Ena bled Services and Products 4,087 5,800 8,300 4,087 8,300 

(e) Shipping and l ogistics Services 15,878 18,100 18,100 

(fl Others 40 24 27 40 27 

fsl Unallocated 23,211 7,231 12,310 23,211 12,310 

Total Assets 74,296 1,02,794 J,Jti,JJJ 74,296 1,16,131 

Assets pe,talnlng to discontinued operations S 422 85,861 88157 5 422 88,157 

Total Assets 79,718 1,88,655 1,04,288 79,718 104,188 

4 Seement llablllties 

(a) Health, Hygiene, Safety P,oducts and Its services 10,28] 10,]0) 17,651 10,28] 17,651 

lb) Enginee,ing 8,316 8,994 9,162 8,316 9,162 

(cl Real Estate 18,838 19,967 17.246 18,838 17,146 

(d) IT Enabled Services and P,oducts 13,816 14,90) 18,777 13,816 18,777 

(e) Shipping and Lo1istics Services 9,964 9,778 9,778 

(f) 0 1hers 3,500 1,170 1,092 3,500 1,092 

Isl Unallocated 11 769 7,801 9,491 11 769 9,492 

Total llabllit!es 66,522 73,102 83,198 66,522 83,198 

liabilities pertalnlne to discontinued operations 4,957 l 31,878 1,28,749 4 957 1,18,749 

Total llabititles 71,479 2,04,980 2,ll,947 71,479 1,Jl,947 

Notes on Secment Information: 

1. The Chief Ope,ating Decision maker of 1he Group examines the Group's performance from a product portfolio and the industries in which they operale and has identifie d 

five reportable segments a t 1he group level. 

2. Details of product categories Included In each segment comprises: 

•l Health, Hygiene, Safety Products and 11s services Includes manufacturing, selling, renting and servicing of vacuum cleaners, water filter cum purifiers, wa1e, and waste 

water u e atment plant, trading in electronic air cleanlns systems, sma ll household appliances, digital security system and fire extin.11ulsher etc, Major part of this business 
has been demersed/held for sale/discontinued. The seament resuhs, seamen! assets and segment liabilities from the discontinued operations have been disclosed 

separately, 
b) Enginee,lns Segment Includes manufacture/ trading In P,eclslon Cutting Tools, Sprlng lock Washers and Ma,kins Systems. 
cl Real Estate Includes income from renting out Investment properties and revenue from real estate development project. 
d) IT Enabled Services and Products Includes !fading of note countlng machines, electronic cash reclster, point of sale machine, manufacturlna of different types of kiosks, 

Forbes Xpreu consis!lng of ule of mobile recharce, bill paymenu and money transfer, transaction ne twork and services comprlsin1 of maintenance, servicing and suppor t 
services for kiosks a nd o ther devices. Ourina the previous year the Group has declded to discontinue operallons relatlng to Forbes hpress. The segme nl results, secment 

assets and segment liabilities from the discontinued opera llons have been disclosed separa tely. 

e ) Shipping and loglstiu Services segment carries on business of ship owners, charterers etc, Pursuant to the termination of the jofnl venture agre ement between the 

sha,eholders of SPFSL during the year, SPFSL ceases to be a subs idiary of the Company and now stands as an a ssociate. 
f) Unallocable Corporate Assets mainly comprises of Investm ents, tax receivables and other unallocable assets 
1) Unallocable liabilities comprise borrowings, provisions and other unallocable llabilitiu. 

l . Segment revenue, segment results, seamen! assets and se.11ment llabililies include the respective amoun11, identifiable to each ol lhe segments o1nd amounts a llocaled on a 

reasonable basis considering lhe product portfolio and reportable segments when evaluated from 1he 1roup perspective . Accordingly, certain amounts considered as 
unallocated by individual su bsidiaries of the group have been classified for the pu,poses of the consolida1ed se.11ment disclosure based on the product portfolio and 

industry of the ,espective subsidiary as this would be more relevant to the users of these finanm1I resullS. 

Includes a non-cash charge of Impairment of 1oodwlll/ Investment In Joint Venture of Rs. Jl,767 lakhs for !he year ended 31st March, 2022 {for the year ended llsl 

March, 2021 Rs. 979 lakhs} and for lhe quarter ended 31st March, 2022 Rs. 2S,738 Lakhs. 

# Includes a non-cash charge of impairment of intanglble asseu and intangible assets under development of Rs. 161 Lakhs fo, the yea, ended Jlsl March, 2022 and quafler 
e nded 31st December, 2021 {for the year ended 31st March, 2021 Rs. 6,557 takhs and fo, the quarter ended 31st Ma rch, 2021 Rs. 6,349 lakhs). 

& Include s provision for s1ow•moving damaged or obsolete Inventories of Rs. 1,158 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 (for the year ended 31st March, 

2021 Rs. 451 lakhs), 
Includes a provision for sho rtfall In eicpected recoverable value for asseh held for sale/ loss on sale of assets of Rs. 664 Lakhs for the quar te r a nd 'tell ended 3lsl Ma rch, 

2022 lfo, the quarter end ed 31st March, 2021 Rs. 1,826 Lakhs and for the yur ended 31st Mar ch. 2021 Rs. 4,610 Lakhs). 

Includes sain on capital reduction of Shapoorjl Pallonji Forbes Shipping l imited (SPFSl) of Rs. 793 Lakhs for the quarte r and year ended 31st March, 2022 

• Includes gain on loss o f control of SPFSL Rs 166 Lakhs for the qua rter and year e nded 31st March, 2022. 
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Notes to the Statement of Consolidated Financial Results for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. 

1. Consolidated Statement of Assets and Liabilities as at 31st March, 2022. 

Particulars 

Assets 
1 Non•current assets 

a) Property, Plant and Equipment 

b) Right-of-use assets 
c) Capital work-in-progress 

d) Investment Properties 

e) Goodwill 

f) Other Intangible assets 

g) Intangible assets under development 

h) Financial Assets: 
i) Investments 

ii) Trade receivables 

iii) Other financial assets 

i) Tax assets 
i) Deferred tax assets (net) 

ii) Income tax assets (net} 

j} Other non-current assets 

Total Non-current assets 

2 Current assets 

a} Inventories 
b} Financial Assets: 

i} Trade receivables 

ii} Cash and cash equivalents 

iii} Bank balances other than (iii} above 

iv} Loans 

v} Other financial assets 

c} Other current assets 

Assets classified as held for sale 

Assets pertaining to discontinued operations 

Total Current assets 

Total Assets 

Equity and Liabilities 

£9!illy 
a} Equity share capital 

b) Other equity 

Equity attributable to owners of the Company 

Non-controlling interests 

Total Equity 

Liabilities 

1 Non-current liabilities 

a} Financial liabilities: 

i} Borrowings 

ii) Lease Liabilities 

iii} Other financial liabilities 

b) Provisions 

c} Deferred tax liabilities (net) 

Total Non-current liabilities 

Current llabllitles 
a) Financial liabilities: 

i} Borrowings 

ii} Trade payables 

a} total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 
b} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 

iii} Lease Liabilities 

iv} Other financial liabilities 

b) Provisions 

c) Current tax liabilities (net) 

d) Other current liabilities 

liabilities pertaining to discontinued operations 

Total Current Liabilities 

Total Llabllitles 

Total Equity and Liabilities 

£Rs. in Lakhs/ 

As at Asal 

31.03,2022 31.03.2021 

(Audited} (Audited/ 

9,887 22,491 

1,664 1,657 

82 198 

2,259 2,349 

30,450 

2,011 2,830 

161 

11,709 6,016 

1,097 891 

499 1,995 

13,305 8,902 

3,765 2,367 

1,471 2,036 

5,236 4,403 

665 2,098 

35,109 75,539 

20,158 18,618 

8,698 12,085 
1,731 5,839 

448 910 

1 2 

185 1,021 

11,063 19,857 

2,895 2,078 

13,958 21,935 

5,071 39 

5,422 88,157 

44,609 1,28,749 

79,718 2,04,288 

1,290 1,290 

6,969 {15,392} 

8,259 (14,102} 

(20} 6,443 

8,239 (7,659} 

6,735 17,029 

1,190 1,153 

250 626 

8,175 18,808 

1,059 749 

768 718 

10,002 20,275 

10,002 20,275 

20,783 33,569 

1,367 1,431 

6,728 8,422 

503 551 

2,806 3,652 

32,187 47,625 

966 1,377 

174 262 

23,193 13,659 

56,520 62,923 
4,957 1,28,749 

61,477 1,91,672 

71,479 2,11,947 

79,718 2,04,288 
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2. Consolidated St atement of Cash flows for the year ended 31st March, 2022 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Profit/ (Loss} before ta>e from continuing and discontinued operations 

Adjustments for • 

Depreciation and amortisation expense 

Post acquisition share of (profit) of Joint Venture (using Equity Method) 

Interest income earned on financial assets that are not designated as at fair value 

through profit or loss 
i) Bank deposits 

ii) Interest income from financial assets and others at amortised cost 
Interest on Income Tax/ Wealth Tax refund 

Finance costs 

jGain) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 

(Gain) on disposal of Right of use assets 

!Gain) on disposal/ fa ir value of current investments 

(Gain) due to loss of control in subsidiaries 
Loss on write off of Property, plant and equipment due to deconsolidation of 

subsidiary 

Provision/ write offs (net) for trade receivables and advances 

Credit balances/ excess provision written back 

Recovery of bad debts 
Net foreign exchange (gain)/ loss including effect of exchange difference on 

consolidation of foreign entities 

Except ional items: 

- loss on sale of shipping vessels 

- Provision for disputed matter 

- Provision for shonfall in expected recoverable value of assets sold/ loss on sale of 

asset 

- Impairment of Goodwill/ Investment in Joint Venture 

- Gain on capital reduct ion of Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited (SPFSl) 

• Impact of loss of control of SPFSL 

- Provision for slow-moving damaged or obsolete inventories 
- Provision for impairment of cenain intangible assets and intangible assets under 

development - continuing operations 
- Provision for impairment of certain intangible assets and intangible assets under 

development - discontinued operations 

• Notional gain on distribution of demerged undertaking to owners 

Operating profit before working capital changes 

Changes In working capita I: 

(Increase)/ decrease in trade and other receivables 

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories 

(Increase)/ decrease in other loans and advances 

(Increase)/ decrease in ot her financial assets 

(Increase)/ decrease in other assets 

Increase/ (decrease) in trade and other payables 

Increase/ (decrease) in other financial liabiliti es 

Increase/ (decrease} in provisions 

Increase/ (decrease) in other liabilities 

Cash generated from operations 

Income taxes (paid)/ refunds received (net) 

(a) Net cash f low generated from operating activities 

Cash flows from Investing activities: 

Payments for property, plant and equipment including assets held for sale (net of 

capital creditors and includlng capital advances, capital work-in-progress, investment 

propenies and intangible assets) 

Advances received in relation to assets held for sale 
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment (including investment 

properties and intangible assets) 

Payments for acquisition of investment in subsidiaries 

Purchase of current investments 

Proceeds from sale of current investments 

Payments for sale of investment in Joint venture 

Proceeds from sale of investments in others 

Inter-corporate deposits given 

Inter-corporate deposits received 

Bank balances not considered as cash and cash equivalents 

Interest received 

(bl Net cash flow generated from Investing activities 

(Rs. In Lakhs) 

Year Ended Year Ended 

31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

(Audited) {Audited/ 

4,23,530 (J.647/ 

6,669 9,742 
(1.204) (834/ 

(100) (120/ 

17) (27/ 
(328/ 

6,S92 8,684 

(S93) (1,657) 

(70) (18/ 
(203) (220/ 

(3, 113) 

1,0S5 

2,446 6,690 
(285) /70/ 

(79) 

(l.898) 1,852 
11,268 21,636 

4,610 

230 

664 

33,767 979 
(793) 

(166) 

1,158 451 

161 6,557 

789 

(4,52,929) 

(4,17,908) 13,386 

(4,06,640) 35,022 

16.890 31,375 

2,130 3,672 

(5,S80) 24,592 

5 (1,527) 

627 380 

S99 338 

(3,742) (3,854) 

4,872 396 

(297) (116/ 

7,143 (18,786) 

5,7S7 5,095 

22.647 36,470 

(2.575) 122 

20,072 36,592 

(5,920) (2,573) 

4,000 

868 15,381 

(2,124) 

(8,501) (20,927) 

11.191 16,227 

777 
11 

(7S0) (2,000) 

500 2,000 

898 1,571 

147 140 

3,210 7,706 
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Cash flows from flnanclng activities: 

Proceeds from borrowings 

Repayment of borrowings 

Net Increase/ (decrease) in cash credit facilities, Buyers Credit, Overdraft facility, 

credit card facilities and loans repayable on demand 

Finance costs paid 

Payment of lease Liabilities 

Expenses on Issue of Shares by subsidiary 

TaK Paid on Buyback by subsidiary 

Amount Paid on buyback of shares by subsidiary to non-controlling interest 

Amount Paid on capital reduction by subsidiary to non-controlling interest 

Dividend paid on equity shares 

(c) Net cash flow (used) In financing activities 

(d) Net Increase/ (decrease) In cash and cash equivalents (a+ b + c) 

(e) Cash and cash equivalents as at the commencement of the period 

(f) Cash and cash equivalents on disposal of subsidiaries and demerger of business (net) 

(g) Effects of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 

(h) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the period (d + e + f + g) 

Notes: 

Reconclllation of cash and cash equivalents as per the cash flow statements 

Cash and cash equivalents as per above comprise of the following 

Balances with Banks 

- In current accounts 

- In EEFC accounts 

- In Deposits accounts (with original maturity upto 3 months)• 

Cheques, drafts on hand 

Cash on hand • 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents held under assets pertaining to discontinued business 

Balances as per st atement of cash flows 

Vear Ended 

31.03.2022 

(Audited) 

2,020 

(16,943) 
(4,248) 

(6,143) 

(1,587) 

(48) 

(86) 

(389) 

(87) 

(27,511) 

(4,229) 

8,359 

(2,308) 

1,822 

As at 
31.03.2022 

(Audi ted) 

1,669 

62 

1,731 

91 

1,822 

(Rs. In Lakhs} 

Year Ended 

31.03.2021 

(Audited) 

8,413 

(35,303) 

(1,229) 

(8,160) 

(1,892) 

/1) 

/38,J 72) 

6,126 

3,453 

(1,196) 

/24) 

8,359 

Asat 

31.03.2021 

(Audited/ 

3,486 

142 

2,200 

JJ 

5,839 

2,520 

8,359 

1. The above cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method" setout in Indian Accounting Standard · 7 on Statement of Cash Flows. 

2. Previous year figures have been regrouped/ reclassified, wherever necessary to conform to current year classifica tion. 

3. Other bank balances at the end of the year includes: (i) earmarked balances towards unpaid dividends Rs. 24 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 24 lakhs} and (ii) 

margin money deposits Rs. 260 Lakhs (Previous Year Rs. 235 Lakhs) includes as security against license for import of goods under EPCG Scheme and 

hence are not available for immediate use by the Group. 

4. The interest paid during the year excludes interest e)(pense on loans for real estate development activites amounting to Rs. 53 Lakhs (Previous year Rs. 

363 Lakhs). 

• Amount is below rounding off norms of the Group. 
Contd ... 



3. The above results of Forbes & Company Limited ('the parent' or 'the Company') and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 

"Group") and its joint ventures and associates for the year ended 31'1 March, 2022 are prepared as per the requirements of 
Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and thereafter approved at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 

Monday 30th May, 2022. The results for the year ended 31s t March, 2022 have been audited by the statutory auditors. 

4. The above financial results of the Group, its joint ventures and associates have been prepared in accordance with Indian 
Accounting Standard ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read with the relevant rules issued 
thereunder and the other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

5. Exceptional items: 
(Rs. in Lakhs} 

Quarter ended Year ended 

31.03.22 31.12.21 31.03.21 31.03.22 31 .03.21 

(Refer Note 19) (Unaudited) (Refer Note 19} (Audited) (Audited) 

(i) Provision for disputed matter - - - (230) 

(ii) Impairment of Goodwill/ (25,738) - {33,767) (979) 
Investment in Joint Venture 

-

(iii) Provision for impairment of certain 
intangible assets and intangible - (161) (6,349} (161) (6,557} 

assets under development 

(iv) Provision for slow-moving {1,158) - - (1,158) (451) 
damaged or obsolete inventories 

(v) Provision for shortfall in expected 
recoverable value of assets sold/ (664) - {1,826) (664) (4,610) 

Loss on sale of asset 

(vi) Gain on capital reduction of 
Shapoorji Pal Ion Ji Forbes Shipping 793 - - 793 -

Limited (SPF5L) 

(vii) Impact of loss of control of SPFSL 166 - - 166 -

TOTAL (26,601) (161) (8,175) {35,021) {12,597) 

(i) The Company had received Rs. 1,017 Lakhs in the year ended 31st March, 2016 from the Hon'ble Debt Recovery Tribunal, 
Mumbai, towards principal and interest for loan given to Coromandel Garments Limited (presently under liquidation). 

The Company had made a provision of Rs. 365 Lakhs in earlier years which was reversed on receipt of Rs. 1,017 Lakhs 

from Coromandel Garments Limited and accounted the balance as interest income during the year ended 31st March, 

2016. 

In July 2018, in a separate proceeding the Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai had directed the Company to refund the aforesaid 
amount of Rs. 1,017 Lakhs with interest. Consequently, the Company refunded Rs. 1,056 Lakhs (including interest 
calculated from the date of the order till the date of payment aggregating Rs. 39 Lakhs) and recorded this as an 
exceptional expense during the year ended 31st March, 2019. The Company was subsequently directed by the Hon'ble 
High Court to pay interest from the date the amount was received by the Company amounting to Rs. 276 lakhs (of which 
the Company had provided for Rs. 46 Lakhs and Rs. 230 Lakhs was disclosed as a contingent liability), which was appealed 

by the Company. 

The Official Liquidator vide order dated 23rd December, 2019 adjudicated and admitted a claim of Rs. 744 Lakhs 
(comprising Rs. 325 Lakhs towards loan and Rs. 419 Lakhs as interest). 

The appeal filed by the Company with t he High Court with respect to the interest of Rs. 276 Lakhs was dismissed on 9th 

June, 2021. Thereafter the Official Liquidator filed a report seeking permission from the Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai for 
payment of an amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs after adjusting interest amount of Rs. 276 Lakhs from the total adjudicated 
claim of Rs. 744 Lakhs. The Hon'ble High Court, vide order dated 4 th August 2021, has permitted the Official liquidator to 
pay an amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs to the Company within two weeks from the date of the said Order. Basis the above, the 
Company has provided for Rs. 230 Lakhs in addition t o Rs. 46 Lakhs provided earlier and recorded the expense as an 
exceptional item for year ended 31st March, 2022. The company has received the aforesaid amount of Rs 468 Lakhs in 

the quarter ended 30th September, 2021. 
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3. The above results of Forbes & Company Limited ('the parent' or 'the Company') and its subsidiaries (together referred to as 

"Group") and its joint ventures and associates for the year ended 31'1 March, 2022 are prepared as per the requirements of 
Regulation 33 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India ( Listing Obl igations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, 
which have been reviewed by the Audit Committee and thereafter approved at the meeting of the Board of Directors held on 

Monday 30th May, 2022. The results for the year ended 31st March, 2022 have been audited by the statutory auditors. 

4. The above financial results of the Group, its joint ventures and associates have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting 
Standard ("Ind AS") as prescribed under Sect ion 133 of Companies Act, 2013 read w ith the relevant rules issued thereunder and the 
other accounting principles generally accepted in India. 

5. Exceptional items: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Quarter e nded Year e nded 

31.03.22 31.12.21 31.03.21 31.03.22 31 .03.21 

(Refer Note 19) (Unaudited) (Refer Note 19) (Audited) (Audited) 

(i) Provision for disputed matter . . . (230) 

(ii) Impairment of Goodwill/ (25,738) . . (33,767) (979) 
Investment in Joint Venture 

(iii) Provision for impairment of 
certain intangible assets and . (161) (6,349) (161) (6,557) 
intangible assets under 
development 

(iv) Provision for slow-moving 
(1,158) . . (1,158) (451) 

damaged or obsolete inventories 

(v) Provision for shortfall in expected 
recoverable value of assets sold/ (664) . (1,826) (664) (4,610) 
Loss on sale o f asset 

(vi) Gain on capita l reduction of 
Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping 793 . . 793 . 

Limited (SPFSL) 

(vii) Impact of loss of control of SPFSL 166 . . 166 . 

TOTAL (26,601) (161) (8,175) (35,021) {12,597) 

(i) The Company had received Rs. 1,017 Lakhs in the year ended 31st March, 2016 from the Hon'ble Debt Recovery Tribi.mal, 
Mumbai, towards principal and interest for loan given to Coromandel Garments Limited (presently under liquidation). 

The Company had made a provision of Rs. 365 Lakhs in earlier years which was reversed on receipt of Rs. 1,017 Lakhs from 
Coromandel Garments Limited and accounted the balance as interest income during the year ended 31st March, 2016. 

In July 2018, in a separate proceeding the Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai had directed the Company to refund the aforesaid 
amount of Rs. 1,017 Lakhs with interest. Consequent ly, t he Company refunded Rs. 1,056 Lakhs (including interest 
calcu lated from t he date of the order ti ll the date of payment aggregating Rs. 39 Lakhs) and recorded this as an exceptional 
expense dur ing the year ended 31st March, 2019. The Company was subsequent ly directed by t he Hon'ble High Court to 
pay interest from t he date the amount was received by the Company amounting to Rs. 276 lakhs (of which the Company 
had provided for Rs. 46 Lakhs and Rs. 230 Lakhs was disclosed as a contingent liability), which was appealed by the 
Company. · 

The Official Liquidator vide order dated 23,d December, 2019 adjudicated and admitted a claim of Rs. 744 Lakhs (comprising 
Rs. 325 Lakhs towards loan and Rs. 419 Lakhs as interest). 

The appeal filed by the Company with the High Court with respect to the interest of Rs. 276 Lakhs was dismissed on 91h 
June, 2021. Thereafter the Official Liquidator filed a report seeking permission from t he Hon'ble High Court, Mumbai for 
payment of an amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs after adjusting interest amount of Rs. 276 Lakhs from the total adjudicated claim 
of Rs. 744 Lakhs. The Hon'ble High Court, vide order dated 4,h August 2021, has permitted the Official liquidator to pay 
an amount of Rs. 468 Lakhs to t he Company w ithin two weeks from t he date of the sa id Order. Basis the above, the 
Company has provided for Rs. 230 Lakhs in addition t o Rs. 46 Lakhs provided earlier and recorded the expense as an 
exceptional item for year ended 31" March, 2022. The company has received the aforesa id amount of Rs 468 Lakhs in 
the quarter ended 30th September, 2021. 

Contd ... 



(ii) Before Appointed Date of the Composite Scheme {1st February, 2022) 
In one of the subsidiary group in Europe "Lux Group", business projections could not be achieved due to various factors as 
envisaged previously. Based on an assessment of the revised future projections (including impact of Covid-19 pandemic) 
carried out by the Eureka Forbes Limited's (EFL) (Erstwhile subsidiary) management af ter considering current economic 
conditions and trends, estimated future operating results and growth rates, an amount of Rs. 979 Lakhs for the year ended 

31st March, 2021 has been impaired in the financial results as impairment loss on goodwill on consolidation and disclosed 
as an exceptional item. 

Exceptional item for the year ended 31st March, 2022 represents impairment of investment in joint venture AMC Cookware 
(PTY) Limited, South Africa of Rs. 4,419 Lakhs and corresponding impairment of goodwill on consolidation Rs. 3,817 Lakhs 
respectively. Management of Lux group has approved the disposal of investment in shares of AMC Cookware at an 
approximate value of Rs. 777 Lakhs which has resulted into impairment of investment in AMC Cookware and corresponding 
goodwill on consolidation aggregating Rs. 207 Lakhs and Rs. 8,236 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 
respectively. The sale transaction is executed in the month of December 2021. 

After Appointed Date of the Composite Scheme {1st February, 2022) 
Lux group is part of the Health and Hygiene business segment of the Group and was earlier part of the Eureka Forbes group 
of subsidiaries. Pursuant to the demerger of the major Health and Hygiene business in lines with the composite scheme 
(refer Note 13 below) from the Group, synergies which were expected to bring about business expansion and recovery for 
the Lux Group may not be attainable. Accordingly, based on an assessment of the revised future projections carried out by 
the Company's management after considering the current economic conditions and trends and estimated future operating 
results, an impairment loss on goodwill of Rs. 25,531 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31'1 March, 2022 has been 
recorded as an exceptional item. 

(iii) In Forbes Technosys Limited ('FTL'), a subsidiary, based on FTL management's assessment about the current stage of 
development, expected time and cost required to complete and expected revenues from the projects, FTL has concluded 
that certain projects are impaired. Impairment loss on the above projects aggregating Rs. 161 lakhs for the quarter ended 
3pt December, 2021 and the year ended 31st March 2022 and Rs. 6,557 Lakhs and Rs 6,349 Lakhs for the year and quarter 
ended 31st March, 2021 respectively has been disclosed as an exceptional item in these financial results. 

(iv) In FTL, expense in respect of write down of slow-moving, damaged or obsolete inventories to their net realisable value 
amounting to Rs. 1,158 lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 has been presented separately in financial 
results as exceptional item and accordingly, the corresponding figures of Rs. 451 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2021 
has also been regrouped which was earlier included under 'Changes in inventories of finished goods, work in progress and 
stock-in-trade'. 

(v) During the year ended 31st March, 2021, Shapoorji Pallonji Forbes Shipping Limited ('SPFSL'), sold three of its shipping 
vessels for an aggregate consideration of USD 18.13 million. The difference between the agreed sales consideration (net of 
expenses) and net book value as on the date of the sale of the respective vessels has been recorded as an exceptional loss 
(net of foreign exchange effects) aggregating Rs. 4,610 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and Rs. 1,826 Lakhs for 
the quarter ended March 31, 2021. 

In March 2022, the Company sold its Neelambari vessel for an aggregate consideration of USD 7.60 million. The vessel was 
delivered to the buyer on 17th March, 2022. Loss on sale of Rs. 664 lakhs has been recorded as an exceptional loss being 

the difference between net book value and net sale value for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. 

In December 2021, the Company resolved to sell its Saranga vessel for an aggregate net consideration of USD 12.36 million. 
Memorandum of Understanding has been signed with the buyer for sale of the vessel. The net book value (NBV) of the 
vessel is USD 8.80 million. The sale transaction has been completed subsequent to the year end. 

(vi) Pursuant to NCLT and Bombay High Court approval vide order dated 21st January, 2022 for capital reduction in SPFSL, 
8,05,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each and 3,50,00,000 preference shares of Rs. 10 each were cancelled for a 
consideration of Rs. 0.10 per share. Accordingly, Rs. 793 Lakhs pertaining to interest accrued on the preference shares has 
also been written back as exceptional income during the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022. 

(vii) Pursuant to the termination of the joint venture agreement between the shareholders of SPFSL during the year, SPFSL 
ceases to be a subsidiary of the Company effective 1st March, 2022 and now stands as an associate. Accordingly, the net 
assets of SPFSL as at 1st March, 2022 aggregating Rs. 8,608 Lakhs and the non-controlling interest of SPFSL aggregating Rs. 
6,019 Lakhs has been derecognized and investment in SPFSL as an associate has been recognized at fair value amounting 
to Rs. 2,755 Lakhs. Gain on loss of control over SPFSL has been recorded as an exceptional item in the financial results 
amounting to Rs. 166 Lakhs for the quarter and year ended 31'1 March, 2022. 
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6. Standalone Information: 
(Rs. in Lakhs) 

Particulars Quarter ended Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Revenue from operations 5,271 6,602 44,311 23,505 56,236 

Profit before tax 4,18,506 1,120 5,538 4,12,236 911 
Profit after tax 4,20,167 971 1,525 4,13,294 (3,102) 

Investors can view the standalone results of the Company on the Company's website (www.forbes.co.in) or BSE website 
(www.bseindia.com). 

7. Financial difficulties in certain downstream entities acquired from EFL• 
Forbes Lux International Ltd. (FLIAG): 
Forbes Lux Int ernational Ltd. and its direct subsidiaries (Lux Group) faced financial difficulties during the last years and the period 

ended 31st December 2021. Forbes Lux International Ltd. and the Lux group's ability to continue as a going concern depends on the 
continuing financial support of its ultimate parent company, Eureka Forbes Limited located in India (EFL). The Board of Directors of 
Lux International AG have taken necessary steps to revive and stabilize the business of Lux Group. Further, the ultimate parent 
company, EFL, issued a financial support letter dated 271h January, 2021, that they undertake financial support to the extended 
needed to keep Forbes Lux International Ltd. and Lux Group adequately capitalized. In the event of continuing loss and financial 

needs, EFL will provide necessary liquid funds support or equity to continue its operations. This undertaking is valid until 31st March, 
2022. 

Should EFL be unable to provide necessary liquid funds support or equity, this would constitute a material uncertainty that would 
cast significant doubt about Forbes Lux International Ltd's ability to continue as a going concern. If Forbes Lux International Ltd. is 
not able to continue as a going concern, the financial statement must be prepared at liquidation values. The impact of such change 
in basis of accounting cou ld be material and the necessary provisions would have to be followed by the Board of Directors. 

Lux International AG (Lux group): 
Lux Int ernational AG and its direct and indirect subsidiaries (Lux Group) faced financial difficulties after the outbreak of the 
pandemic in 2020 which caused economical slow-down. The Board of Directors of Lux International AG are taking necessary steps 
to revive and further stabilize the business of Lux Group, cost reduction, revision in business strategy and reduction in cash outflow 
which will ultimately strengthen its financial position. 

The Board of Directors of Lux Group, considering all risks and opportunities which can be assessed and all valuations reflected in 
the accounts of the company, have concluded and prepared the consolidated financial statements of Lux International AG on a 
going concern assumption. The Board of Directors of Lux Group have also taken decisions to divest two unprofitable operations in 
2020 which impacted positively on the 2021 performance, as these local losses did not incur any longer. The erstwhile shareholders 
(EFL) also made a loan-to-equity conversion in March 2021 amounting to TEUR 4,546. In June 2021, erstwhile Eureka Forbes Ltd. 
made an early repayment of the entire remaining (TEUR 6'420) ICICI Bank credit faciliti es and at the same time granted a 
rest ructuring contri bution towards Lux International AG amounting to TEUR 6'890. 

8. One of the subsidiaries, Forbes Technosys Limited (FTL), has not created Debenture Redemption Reserve due to negative retained 
earnings. 

9. FTL has incurred a net loss of Rs. 1,706 lakhs and Rs. 4,223 lakhs during the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2022 respectively. 
FTL's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by Rs. 15,064 lakhs as at 31st March, 2022. FTL has accumulated losses of Rs. 

31,728 lakhs and it s net worth is negative as at 31st March, 2022. These conditions indicate the existence of a material uncertainty 
that may cast a significant doubt about FTL's ability to continue as a going concern. 

FTL's Management has made an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the FTL's operations, financial performance and 

position for the year ended 31" March, 2022, and has concluded that the impact was primarily on the operational aspects of the 
business during the initial months of the year ended 31st March, 2022. FTL has used the principles of prudence in applying 
judgments, estimates and assumptions based on current assessments in preparation of t he financial resu lts. 

FTL has exited loss making business verticals and is now focusing on serving customer orders based on regular supply of raw 
materials and logistics services. FTL has assessed recoverability of its assets such as trade receivables, inventory, other current 
assets and loans and advances and believes that it will recover the carrying amount of all its assets. FTL's management will 
continue to closely monitor any material changes arising out of future economic conditions and impact on its business. 

During the year, the Company and Forbes Campbell Finance Limited (a subsidiary), have provided additional Inter Corporate 
Deposits ("ICDs") aggregating to Rs. 5,183 lakhs (net of repayments) to support the repayment of maturities of long term debts. 

Further, outstanding I CDs of Rs. 3,000 lakhs and Rs. 1,800 Lakhs have been converted into equity shares of FTL during t he months 
of June 2021 and July 2021, respectively, aggregating to 4,80,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10 each of FTL. 
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The Board of Directors of FTL has also approved a scheme of arrangement during the year (Refer Note 10 below) to improve it's 
position of the Company. 

FTL is confident of repayment of all liabilities, as and when due, from business operations and/ or financial support from the 
Company and accordingly, the financial results of FTL have been prepared on a going concern basis. 

10. The Board of Directors of FTL, in its meeting held on 27th December, 2021, after considering the rationale and pursuant to the 
provisions of Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and subject to the requisite 
approval of the shareholders of FTL and the sanction of the jurisdictional National Company Law Tribunal and such other 
competent authority as may be applicable, approved the Composite Scheme of Arrangement between Forbes Campbell Service 
Limited ("FCSL") and FTL and their respective shareholders ('the Scheme'). The Scheme was subsequently approved by the 
shareholders of FTL through their consent on 25th January, 2022. 

The Scheme inter-alia proposes for amalgamation of FCSL into FTL and reduction of share capital of FTL before the said 
amalgamation. 

Subject to the requisite approvals, through the above mentioned Scheme, FTL has proposed to proportionately reduce capital by 
cancelling -
a) 9,39,48,228 equity shares of Rs. 10 each out of the existing 9,48,97,200 equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for a 

consideration of Rs. 0.001 for each equity share so cancelled. 
b) 6,13,80,000 "10% Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares" (OCRPS) of Rs. 10 each out of the existing 

6,20,00,000 OCRPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for a consideration of Rs. 0.001 for each OCR PS so cancelled. 
c) 99,00,000 "0.10% Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference shares" (NCR PS) of Rs. 10 each out of the existing 1,00,00,000 

NCRPS of Rs. 10 each fully paid up for a consideration of Rs. 0.001 for each NCRPS so cancelled. 
The Scheme proposes that a consideration of Rs. 2.6 Lakhs "6% Non-cumulative Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares" 
(NCRPS) of Rs. 10 each of FTL shall be issued and allotted to t he Equity Shareholders of the FCSL in proportion to their holding in 
FCSL as on the Record Date for Amalgamation. 

Pending the order of NCLT for approval of the Scheme, the financial results of FTL have been prepared without giving effect to 
the proposed Scheme. 

11. Ind AS 115 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers', a new accounting standard notified by the Minist ry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
on 28th March, 2018 was effective from accounting period beginning on or after 1st April, 2018 and replaced the then existing 
revenue recognition standards. The application of Ind AS 115 had significant bearing on the Company's accounting for recognition 
of revenue from real estate development projects. 

The Company had applied the modified retrospective approach as on 1st April, 2018 and recorded a transitional impact in retained 
earnings towards the reversal of profits aggregating Rs. 5,083 Lakhs (net of tax) on real estate projects under development (i.e. flats 
under construction) for contracts not completed as on 1st April, 2018. 

Considering the terms of the contract, receipt of Occupancy Certificate for Phase I of the real estate development project, issuance 
of possession letters and transfer of control of t he real estate units to the customers, the Company has recognised revenue of Rs. 
1,491 Lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2022, Rs. 408 Lakhs for the quarter ended 31st December, 2021 and Rs. 38,653 Lakhs for 
the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2021 

12. The COVID-19 pandemic has severely disrupted the world's business operations due to global lockdown and other emergency 
measures imposed by the various governments. The operations of the Group, its joint ventures and associates were impacted due 
to the shutdown of plants, real estate development project and offices following the nationwide lockdown. The Group commenced 
with its operations in a phased manner in line with the directives from the authorities. 

The Group has evaluated the impact of this pandemic (considering t he current situation and likely future developments along with 
the expected impact of new waves and strains of virus) on its business operations, liquidity and recoverability/ carrying values of its 
assets including property, plant and equipment, intangible including goodwill, trade receivables, inventory and investments as at 
the Balance Sheet date. Based on the management's review of the current indicators and economic conditions there are no 
additional adjustments on its financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2022. The Group has adequate unutilized fund-based 
credit facilities available, to take care of any urgent requirement of funds. 

The Group throughout the lockdown period and even subsequently has been able to maintain adequate control of its assets and 
there are no significant changes to its control environment during the period. 

However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the uncertainties associated with its nature and duration 
and accordingly, the impact may be different from t hat estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. The Company 
will continue to monitor any material changes to future economic conditions. 

13. The Board of Directors of the Company at their Board Meeting held on 8th September, 2020 had, inter alia, approved the 
Composite Scheme of Arrangement ("Scheme") under Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. 
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The Scheme provides for amalgamation and vesting of Aquaignis Technologies Private Limited(" ATPL" ) and Euro Forbes Financial 
Services Limited ("EFFSL") [the wholly owned subsidiaries of Eureka Forbes Limited ("EFL")] with and into EFL and amalgamation 
and vesting of EFL w ith and into the Company. 

Further, upon the above part of the Scheme becoming effective, Demerger and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in 
the Scheme) of the Company into Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited ("FESL"), on a going concern basis would take place. Upon the 
entire scheme becoming effective, the name of FESL shall be changed to Eureka Forbes Limited. 

On 19th September, 2021 a Share Purchase Agreement (SPA) was entered into between Lunolux Limited (Acquirer), an Advent 
International entity, Shapoorji Pallonji and Company Private Limited (Seller), the Company, EFL, FESL and Forbes Campbell 
Finance Limited ("FCFL") for sale of shares of FESL, post issuance and listing of the same pursuant to the Scheme becoming 
effective. 

Pursuant to the aforesaid SPA, the Board of Di rectors of the Company vide resolution dated 10th October, 2021, approved the 
following amendments to the Scheme: 
- certain identified investments of EFL shall not be demerged as part of the Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) 
from the Company to FESL, 
- "appointed date" as per the Scheme would be effective date or the first day of the calendar month immediately succeeding the 
month in which the effective date occurs, as may be decided by the Board. 

Consequently, notices to equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors had been sent for the aforesaid 
modifications in t he Scheme and necessary approvals from the stock exchange, regulators and other stakeholders were sought. 
On 6th October, 2021, the Company has received an order from Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Mumbai (NCLT) for 
convening meetings of equity shareholders, secured creditors and unsecured creditors and consequently the meetings were held 
on 22nd November, 2021, where the scheme was approved. EFL has deconsolidated FESL w .e.f. 1st December, 2021. Further, the 
Scheme was sanctioned by the NCLT vide order dated 25th January, 2022. Vpon receipt of the certified copy of the said order, 
the Scheme was made effective by filing Form INC 28 with the Registrar of Companies, Mumbai, Maharashtra (ROC) on 1" 
February, 2022. 

The Board of Directors of the respect ive companies vide resolution dated 31st January, 2022 have approved 1'1 February, 2022 as 
the Appointed Date, for the purposes of the Scheme. Consequently, with effect from ist February, 2022, ATPL and EFFSL have 
merged with EFL, fol lowed by merger of EFL into t he Company and demerger of t he Demerged Undertaking as defined in the 
Scheme on a going concern basis into FESL on the same date. 

In accordance with the provisions of the Scheme, each shareholder of the Company as on the Record date i.e. 11th February, 
2022 were allotted 15 shares each of FESL (Now EFL) which got listed on BSE Limited. The allotment of the aforesaid new shares 
was completed on 14th February, 2022 and each shareholder of Forbes & Company Limited became entitled to 15 shares of FESL 
(Now EFL) in the ratio to their original holding as per details specified in the scheme. 

Post the merger scheme becoming effective, Demerger and vesting of Demerged Undertaking (as defined in the Scheme) of the 
Company into Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited ("FESL"), on a going concern basis has taken place on the appointed date of 1'1 

February, 2022 as approved by the NCLT. 

The demerger has been considered as a dist ribution of non-cash assets to the owners of the Company and the difference in the 
fair value and the carrying amount of net assets of the Demerged Undertaking is recognised as Notional gain on demerger in 
these financial results as an exceptional item amounting to Rs. 4,52,929 Lakhs during the year ended 31st March, 2022. Neither 

the Company nor t he shareholders received any cash amount nor were they entitled to receive any cash in respect of this 
Composite Scheme. 

(Rs. in lakhs) 

Distribution of demerged undertaking to Shareholders of the 406,600 
Company 

Carrying value of net assets/ (liabilities) of demerged entities (46,329) 

Notional gain on distribution of demerged undertaking to owners 4,52,929 

14. Discontinued Operations 

Health and Hygiene Business 

Pursuant to the composite scheme of arrangement as described above, EFL and related entities in the Health and Hygiene segment 
as described in the scheme will be demerged into FESL. The aforesaid scheme has been approved by the Honorable National 
Company Law Tribunal as at 25th January, 2022 and meets the criteria prescribed in Ind AS 105 "Non-current Assets Held for Sale 
and Discontinued Operations" to be considered as discontinued operations. Accordingly, the Demerged Undertaking as defined in 
the Scheme has been disclosed as discontinued operations in these financial results. 
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Further, the Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 23rd February, 2022 has approved entering into a binding 
term sheet for sale of its entire shareholding in Forbes Facility Services Private Limited (FFSPL), a wholly owned subsidiary of the 
Company to SILA Solutions Private Limited. The binding term sheet has been executed on 23rd February, 2022 and the definit ive 
agreement for sale has been executed on 201h May, 2022. The transaction is subject to completion of conditions precedent as shall 
be set out in the definitive documents and is likely to be completed by Ql/ Q2 of FY 2022-2023. The proposed sale consideration is 
Rs 4,200 Lakhs, subject to certain closing adjustments. 

Accordingly, the previous periods have been reclassed and the amount pertaining to discontinued operations has been disclosed as 
a single line in the financial results. 

Th f h e summary o resu ts o t ea oresa1 1scontinue 'd d' d operations, as inc u e un er . I d d d th e resu s, 1s as o ows: It . f II 

Particular Quarter ended ¥ear ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Revenue (Including Other Income) 22,061 54,812 54,763 182,308 193,131 

Expenses (20,390) (57,304) (55,308) {177,931) {193,275) 

Profit/ {Loss) before tax, Share of 
profit of joint ventures and 
associates accounted for using 
equity method and Exceptional 
items from discontinued 
operations 1,671 {2,492) {545) 4,377 (144) 

Share of profit of joint ventures 
and associates accounted for using 
equity method . . 44 351 
Profit/ {Loss) before tax and 
Exceptional items from 
discontinued operations 1,671 {2,492) {501) 4,377 207 

Exceptional Items {refer Note 13) 4,52,929 . 4,52,929 . 

Profit/ {Loss) before tax from 
discontinued operations 4,54,600 {2,492) {501) 4,57,306 207 
Tax expense (371) 54 {479) {2,080) {1,989) 
Profit/ (Loss) after tax from 
discontinued operations 4,54,229 (2,438) (980) 4,55,226 {1,782) 

ForbesExpress Business 
During the previous year, FTL decided to discontinue certain operations relating to online utility recharges and money transfer 
service forming part of ForbesExpress. Accordingly, FTL has presented the profit/(loss) in respect of t hese discontinued operations 
separately in these results as a single amount. 

The summary of results of the aforesaid discontinued operations, as included under the results, is as follows: 
Particular Quarter ended Year ended 

31.03.2022 31.12.2021 31.03.2021 31.03.2022 31.03.2021 

Revenue . . . . 873 

Expenses . . (2) . (945) 
{Loss) before tax and Exceptional . . {2) . {72i 
items from discontinued 
operations 

Exceptional Items . . . . (789) 

{Loss) before tax from . . (2) . {861) 
discontinued operations 

Tax expense . . . . . 

{Loss) after tax from . . (2) . {861) 
discontinued operations 

15. The Board of Directors of the Company, in their meeting held on 22nd December, 2020, approved entering into of a Memorandum 
of Understanding {"MOU" ) for sale of approximately 3.804 acres of land at Chandivali with a net book value as on 31st March, 2022 
aggregating Rs. 2,316 Lakhs [including amounts paid under the Urban Land {Ceiling & Regulation) Act, 1976 seeking permission for 
the transfer/ sale/ development/ redevelopment of the land paid during the quarter ended 31" March, 2022 of Rs. 2,277 Lakh s) 
reflected as 'Asset Held for Sale' for a consideration of Rs. 20,000 Lakhs. 
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The Board of Directors of the Company have approved entering into and execution of a new Agreement For Sale (AFS) with the 
same party Equinix India Private Limited (Equinix) for sale of land at Chandivali for an increased consideration of Rs. 23,500 Lakhs. 
The new AFS was executed on 24th March, 2022 and the completion of the said transaction subject to fulfilment of conditions 
precedent is expected to be completed in Ql of FY 2022-2023. Further, Equinix'has also given Rs. 4,000 Lakhs as a security deposit 
for the land which is reflected under Other Liabilities. 

16. The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 ("the code") which, inter alia, deals with employees benefits 
during employment and post-employment. The code has been published in the Gazette of India. The effective date of the code is 
yet to be notified and the rules for quantifying the financial impact are also yet to be issued. In view of this, the impact of change, 
if any, will be assessed and recognised post notification of the relevant provisions. 

17. The Board of Directors of the Company at their meeting held on 30'h May, 2022 has approved the sale of its entire shareholding in 
SPFSL, an associate as at 31st March, 2022 of the Company. Accordingly, the net carrying value of the investment of Rs. 2,755 Lakhs 
has been classified as asset held for sale as at 31s1 March, 2022. 

18. During the current year, 
i. Pursuant to the Composite Scheme of Arrangement as described in Note 13 above, the following are not subsidiaries/ associates 

of the Company as at 31st March, 2022: 
• Eureka Forbes Limited 

• Aquaignis Technologies Private Limited 
• Euro Forbes Financial Services Limited 
• Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited 
• Forbes Aquatech Limited 
• Forbes Lux FZCO 
• Euro Forbes Limited 

• Forbes Enviro Solutions Limited 
• Euro P2P Direct (Thailand) Company Limited 

ii. AMC Cookware PTY Ltd (joint venture) has been sold in December 2021 
iii. Liquidation process for LIAG Trading & Investments Ltd has been completed and control has been lost effective 31st March, 

2021. 

During the previous year: 
i. Lux Italia srl, Italy, a subsidiary of EFL's subsidi~ry, ceased to be a subsidiary on 1st January, 2021. 

ii. Lux Deutschland GmBH, Germany, a subsidiary of EFL's subsidiary, ceased to be a subsidiary from 81h May, 2020. Liquidation of 
this entity is in progress and the entity is under control of the insolvency administrator. Management has given effect of 'loss of 
control' for the entity in the consolidated financial results of the previous year. 

iii. Lux Norge A/S a subsidiary of EFL's subsidiary, ceased to be a subsidiary from 1st January 2021. 
iv. Forbes Aquatech Limited (erstwhile joint venture of EFL), has become subsidiary of EFL w.e.f. 28th August, 2020. 
v. Infinite Water Solutions Private Limited {erstwhile joint venture of EFL), has become a subsidiary w.e.f. 31st March, 2021. 

19. The figures of the quarter ended 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 are balancing figures between the audited figures in respect 
of the full financial year ended on 31st March, 2022 and 31st March, 2021 as reported in these financial results and t he unaudited 
published year to date figures up to third quarter ended on 31st December, 2021 and 31st December, 2020 respectively, which were 
subjected to Limited Review by the Statutory Auditors. 

20. Figures for the previous periods are re-classified / re-arranged/ regrouped, wherever necessary, to correspond with the current 
period's classification/ disclosure. 

Mumbai, 
30th May, 2022 

For Forbes & Company Limited 

Managing Director 
DIN:01423084 



Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified opinion) submitted 
along-with Annual Audited Financial Results 

··~liit~~~~~~~!~~~f;~f.~~~~~@'.~~lm~~t\q~~;tqr:tfl~,~m~~s!~11~t~·~~g~4ff~!~~~!g.~~~01&>··· 
Consolidated Consolidated Adjusted Figures 

I. Audited Figures (audited figures after SI. 
Particulars (as reported adjusting for No. 

before adjusting qualifications) 
for qualifications) 

1. Turnover/ Total income (Rs. in Lakhs) 54,917 54,917 

2. Total Expenditure (Rs. in Lakhs) 54,876 54,876 

3. Net Profit/(Loss) (Rs. in Lakhs) 4,22,481 4,22,481 

'1. Earnings Per Share 3,319.02 3,319.02 

5. Total Assets (Rs. in Lakhs) 79,718 79,718 

6. Total Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs) 71,479 71,479 

7. Net Worth (Rs. in Lakhs) 8,239 8,239 

II. Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

a. Details of Audit Qualification: a) Lux International AG 

The following qualification to the opinion included in the audit report 
dated May 17, 2022, issued by an independent firm of accountants on 
the consolidated financial statements of Lux International AG, a 
subsidiary of Forbes & Company Limited (Holding Company) is 
reproduced as under: 

"Lux International AG's investment in Lux del Paraguay S.A., a foreign 
company, is fully consolidated. Lux del Paraguay S.A.'s net result in the 
amount ofTEUR - 296 and total assets of EUR 2.821 million are included 
in the Group's consolidated income statement and· consolidated 
statement of financial position for the financial year then ended. We 
were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence on Lux del 
Paraguay S.A.'s share of net profit as well as total assets and liabilities for 
the year ended December 31, 2021, as access to the financial 
information was limited to the Lux del Paraguay S.A.'s auditor. Due to 
this scope limitation, the component auditor is unable to issue an 
opinion on the financial statements of Lux del Paraguay S.A.. 
Consequently, we were unable to determine whether any adjustments 
are required with regards to the net assets and results of Lux del 
Paraguay S.A. included in the consolidated income statement 
and consolidated statement of financial position." 

b) Forbes Lux International AG 
The following qualification to the opinion included in the audit report 
dated May 13, 2022, issued by an independent firm of accountants on 
the financial statements of Forbes Lux International AG, a subsidiary of 
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the Holding Company is reproduced as under: 
"Forbes Lux International AG has an indirect investment in Lux del 
Paraguay S.A., a foreign company that is a subsidiary of Lux 
International AG. The values attributable to Lux del Paraguay S.A. are 
recognized as part of the fair value of the Lux International AG 
investment, amounting to CHF 46.507 million. Lux del Paraguay S.A.'s 
share in the fair value recognized in the balance sheet of Forbes Lux 
International AG amounts to CHF 1.962 million as at December 31, 
2021. We were unable to obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence 
on Lux del Paraguay S.A.'s financial results and balances for the year 
ended December 31, 2021, as access to the financial information was 
limited to Lux del Paraguay S.A.'s auditors. Due to this scope limitation, 
the component auditor is unable to issue an opinion on the financial 
statements of Lux del Paraguay S.A.. Consequently, we were unable to 
determine whether any adjustments are required with regards to the 
investment of Lux del Paraguay S.A. and respective portion of the fair 
value, amounting to CHF 1.962 million, which is included in the total · 
investment value, amounting to CHF CHF 46.507 million." 

b. Type of Audit Qualification: Qualified Opinion 

c. Frequency of qualification: Appeared first time 

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views: There is 

no impact on the standalone financial statements of Forbes & Company Limited since all balances 

pertaining to the entities referenced above are impaired. Impact on the consolidated financial 

statements of Forbes & Company Limited is not quantifiable. 

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: No impact is determinable. 

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: The component 

management was not able to provide certain information due to issues arising out of system 

integration. During the integration activity, team members were impacted due to Covid-19 and 

availability of the personnel was seriously impacted. However, considering the scale of 

operations of the component entity, the management is of the view that there would be 

insignificant impact, if any, on the consolidated financial statements. 
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Ill. 

(iii) Auditor's Comments on (I) or (ii) above: In accordance with our discussions with management 
and the component auditors, the component management was unable to provide certain 
information to the component auditors due to issues with the system integration. The Holding 
Company's management is of the opinion that due to the scale of operations of the said entities, 
the impact on the consolidated financial statements would be insignificant, if any. As per our 
understanding, the impact of the same is indeterminable. 

Signatories: 

~~ • Managing Director 

• CFO 

• Audit Committee Chairman 

~~ ~ ­
N~ r 

• Statutory Auditor 

Place: Mumbai 
Date: May 30, 2022 

~ A~-
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